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P.U.B. Hearing - Newfoundland & L abrador Hydro - Rate Hearing

(9:30 am)

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Thank you and good
morning. Any preliminary matters before we get started,
counsel?

MR. KENNEDY: Not that I'm aware of, Chair, no
preliminary matters. | should advise the panel that
counsels did meet yesterday. There was some discussion
concerning the scheduling and we determined that we
never had enough information and the parties are gone
back to acquire more information and then we're going to
meet again on Friday, so I'll report to the panel again
hopefully Friday about the status of that.

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Thank you, counsel.
Good morning, Mr. Budgell.

MR. BUDGELL: Good morning.

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Good morning, Ms.
Henley Andrews. | wonder could | ask you to continue
with your cross-examination, please?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes, Mr. Noseworthy.
Mr. Budgell, some time ago, earlier in the week, you
indicated with respect to some questions on your capital
budget that part of the reason for looking at the JDE
upgrade was that Hydro was expecting that the support for
the current version of JDE would be finished in 2003?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, | believe so.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Do you have any written
communication from JDE with respect to that?

MR. BUDGELL: | haven't seen the written communication.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Are you aware that
Abitibi also uses the JDE system?

MR. BUDGELL: | was aware of it through discussions, |
believe, a number of years ago with the gentleman at your
left, that Abitibi used the system, and my sister used to
work with Abitibi in Grand Falls, advised me before she
retired that there was an upheaval at their organization as
well asours.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Associated with putting
itin place?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes. Putting such alargefinancia system
in any corporation, organization, entails a lot of upheaval
and changes to peopl€'s work habits and what have you.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: | take it then it would
surprise you to hear that Abitibi's understanding is that
JDE will be supported until at least 2005, the current
version?

MR.BUDGELL: Yeah. I'monly ... my statement was on my
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best memory of communications with our IS& T Group.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Could you check with
your IS & T Group and see if they have any forma
communication from JDE with respect to the support of that
system?

MR. BUDGELL: I will.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Thank you. Y esterday
one of the things that we discussed was the assignment or
the proposed reassignment of Doyle's Port aux Basgues
line from specifically assigned to Newfoundland Power to
common.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS.HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Mr. O'Rielly, couldwesee
IC-181? 1C-181, Mr. Budgell, indicates the cost
implications of that proposed reassignment, would you
agree?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that indicates that it
would result in a $94,000 increase in the costs to the
isdland's four industrial customers?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS.HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that $94,000increase
would have to be added to the roughly $1 million increase
if the reassignment of the Great Northern Peninsula were
also approved?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't recall the exact number but it would
be additional to the GNP, yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Andif thetranscript from
yesterday indicated, that having looked at another exhibit,
that that was roughly $1 million for the industrid
customers, you wouldn't disagree with that?

MR. BUDGELL: That's correct.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: I'd like to move to the
issue of converters, and in your testimony the issue of
convertersis dealt with at page 21, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes. There'sareferencein the middle of
that page.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Andtheonly thingthatis
said in your evidence with respect to the frequency
converters is that they'd previously been assigned as
common plant and Hydro is now proposing to specifically
assign the converter at Corner Brook to Corner Brook Pulp
and Paper and the converter at Grand Falls to Abitibi's
Grand Fallsdivision?

MR. BUDGELL: That's correct.
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MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: I'd like to go to the
evidence of Mr. Odler, the supplementary evidence of Mr.
Oder at page 22, and, Mr. O'Ridlly, if you'd just |eave that
there on the screen when you get there, | have a few
questions before | start dealing with that document. You
would agree that the converters are owned by Hydro?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, they are.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And they are maintained
by Hydro.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And you'd also agree, |
presume, that Hydro's energy is generally delivered at 60
cycles?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And the Corner Brook
Pulp and Paper Mill utilizes a considerable amount of its
energy initsmill at 50 cycle?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, and they use that converter to
convert ... I'm getting feedback here. It's starting to affect
my ear.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay.
MR. BUDGELL: Maybe I'm too close to the mic, am |?
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: No, it's better now.

MR. BUDGELL: And the Deer Lake Power 50 hertz
generation is converted by the converter to, I'm sorry, Deer
Lake has an excess of 50 cycle generation at their facilities
and the converter is used to convert that (inaudible) 50
cycle load and also to convert the excess to 60 cycle for
use at the mill.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. Let'sjust go back
alittlein what you said. You said Corner Brook Pulp and
Paper uses it, uses the converter to convert the 60 cycle
energy from Hydro to 50 cycle, but that's really not correct,
isit?

MR. BUDGELL: No.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Hydro usesaconverter to
convert from 60 cycle to the 50 cycle that Corner Brook
Pulp and Paper needs.

MR. BUDGELL: Most of the use, from what | understand
right now, of the converter is for Deer Lake Power
generation, which is, a portion of it is 50 cycle and the, a
that location they have an excess of 50 cycle generation.
In other words, it's more than the load that's at the paper
mill, 50 cycle. So the 50 cycle generation is carried to
Corner Brook over 50 cycle lines, fed to the converter, the
excess is fed through the converter and converted to 60 for
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use at the mill. The 50 cycle portion of the load, of their
generation that meets their existing load, obviously just
feedsinto their 50 cycle system.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: The converters have
always been common, treated as common, is that correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, as far as these rate referrals, they
have been.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Now, when you look at
Mr. Osler's evidence, | just want to go through and, with
respect to his factual assumptions, to check with you as to
whether you agree with those factual assumptions since
you've obviously been the person who's, you obviously
are the person who's dealing with the issues on the
reassignment of these units. These units were put in place
at the time that Bay d'Espoir came on stream, isn't that
correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Aspart of that.
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And prior to Bay d'Espoir
being developed, there was no island grid, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: That's correct.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And when you look at
the, or if you look at the study that was prepared by
Shawinigan (phonetic), which is at 1C-219, which I'm not
going to refer to in detail, but if we wereto look at that, the
participation of the two paper mills in agreeing to utilize
energy from Bay d'Espoir was part of making it economic,
would you agree?

(9:45am)

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, at that particular time there were a
number of separate systems on the island, two of which
were owned and controlled by the two paper companies,
and the situation at the time was such that the, a number of
these systems were severely constrained in as far as the
capacity and energy that were available to meet the load
requirements of existing customers and there certainly was
not any excess capacity and energy available to meet any
so-called, | guess, industrialization of the province or the,
to allow the province to grow further.

MS.HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Andinthe Shawinigan, or
whatever they are, | can't, Shawmont or whatever report at
I C-219, there is adiscussion of planning for the output of
the Bay d'Espoir development as to whether it should be 50
cycle, 60 cycle or a combination of 50 cycle and 60 cycle,
correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, that'sright.

EXECUTECH Inc. - 579-4451

Page 2



AW N B

28

29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36

37

38

39

40
41
42
43
44

45
46
a7
48

November 8, 2001

P.U.B. Hearing - Newfoundland & L abrador Hydro - Rate Hearing

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And the reason why the
50 cycle discussion was taking place was because both the
mill in Grand Falls at that time and the mill in Corner Brook
produced their paper using 50 cycle power.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes. They were predominantly 50 cycle at
that time. Grand Falls was anyway, but | think Corner
Brook had both.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Andyou would agree that
from a historical perspective the decision to, by Hydro, to
install the converters both at Corner Brook and at Grand
Falls enabled the Bay d'Espoir project to be developed as
a 50 cycle project, as a 60 cycle project, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes. The converterswere put in placeto
alow the development at Bay d'Espoir to proceed as a
single frequency development, and allowed the Bay
d'Espoir development to connect to the 250 hertz systems
and provide a connection between those systems and
provide additional power to those customers.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Sowhenyoulook at page
22 of Mr. Odler's testimony at line 21 to 24, | take it you
would agree that a primary component of this devel opment
was the frequency converters which were required to
integrate 50 hertz generation and loads with 60 hertz
generation and loads, and without the converters the grid
would appear to have had to be developed at a higher cost
to provide permanent 50 hertz and 60 hertz generation and
transmission. Y ou would agree with that?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Youwould aso agree with
Mr. Odler's summary of studies, which is contained at lines
26 through 35 on that page and over to line 1 on the
following page, which is, which cites the various studies
and indicates that the frequency converters alowed
interconnections of the various loads to make the Bay
d'Espoir and island transmission network possible and to
create the grid?

MR. BUDGELL: Can| take a second to read it, please?
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes.
MR. BUDGELL: Yes, at that particular time.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And if you look then a
the second bullet point at line, starting at line 35, it says,
"Frequency converters would provide additional benefits
to the overall grid, including frequency and voltage
regulation.”

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, at that time, and | think the reference
at that particular time was to assist them where Bay d'Espoir
was coming on stream with, | believe they were looking at,
well, four units at that time, and the load requirement of the
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Bay dEspoir system and the load requirements of the
Corner Brook system, | guessin particular, | don't know if
it'strue of Grand Falls, | doubt it, but the system sizes were
more or less roughly the same.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay.

MR. BUDGELL: So tying the systems together at that
particular time provided the commentary there in regards to
frequency of voltage regulation at that time, in the early
'60s, but that has disappeared since as the system grew ...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: When you look at the
reason for the installation of the converters in the first
place though, the issue of frequency and voltage
regulation was an incidental benefit, wouldn't you agree?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, at that particular time it was.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: That the primary purpose
was redly to have enough customers to make the grid
viable, to make Bay d'Espoir viable.

MR. BUDGELL: Wéll, | would re-state it a different way,
was to enable the public entity, which was building Bay
d'Espoir to deliver power to a number of customers in
systems that were constrained at that time and the
developers didn't have the wherewithal to meet those
customers' load.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And without those
customers it wouldn't have been economic to develop Bay
d'Espoir.

MR. BUDGELL: | don't know whether that, | can make that

statement or not. | don't think that study talked to the
economics of Bay d'Espoir on an overall basis.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Now, your evidenceis
that the only customers who are now benefitting from these
converters are Abitibi in Grand Falls and Corner Brook Pulp
and Paper, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, and clearly there's no other, there are
no other customer ... there was a customer in Corner Brook,
| believe the North Star Cement, utilized 50 hertz power, but
I'm not aware of any other customers that utilize 50 hertz
other than those two customers in the province at thistime.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: When Corner Brook Pulp
and Paper has a problem with its own generation so that it's
not available to meet its 50 hertz or 50 cycle needs, it
purchases its additional energy from Hydro, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, it does.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C. And in those
circumstances the converter continues to be used to
convert 60 cycle power to 50 cycle power?

MR. BUDGELL: I'm sorry, convert ...
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MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: 60 cycle Hydro'spower to
50 cyclefor use in the Corner Brook mill.

MR. BUDGELL: Areyou talking in the instance of loss of
current generation or are you talking about ...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Loss... whenthe... when
Corner Brook Pulp and Paper's own generation is down.

MR. BUDGELL: If they have insufficient 50 hertz
generation the converter can be used to deliver 60 hertz to
50 hertz power for use at the mill, yes, in that instance.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that does happen for
mai ntenance purposes occasionally?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, it may very well. | have noimmediate
evidence that that occurs or occurs frequently or not.
They have, like | indicated earlier, excess 50 hertz right now
generation in relation to the load, and | can't say whether
that's sufficient to allow them to do maintenance and still
meet the 50 hertz load, their 50 hertz generation.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Y ouwould acknowledge,
however, that the contracts that are currently proposed for
both Corner Brook and Grand Falls contain a concept called
generation outage demand?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that generation
outage demand is a provision allowing these two industrial
customers to purchase additional load from Hydro when
their generation is out?

MR. BUDGELL: That's correct.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And therefore it is
certainly something that the companies or the two
customers have considered are important to have included
in their contract.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS.HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Whichwouldindicatethat
there is at least some reasonable probability that that is
used.

MR. BUDGELL: Or will be used.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Or will be used.
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS.HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Inaddition, the generation
at both Grand Falls and Corner Brook Pulp and Paper is
availableto the grid in times of emergency, agreed? If they
were ...

MR. BUDGELL.: If thereisexcessavailable, | would expect
that that would be so.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Butin...
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MR. BUDGELL: Only if it'sin excess of their own mill load.
| don't know whether the entities would shut down the mills
to provide it to the system or not. 1'm assuming they would
if the Board requested it. | don't know whether they would
if Hydro requested it.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Are you aware of the
provisions of the current Electrical Power Control Act
which allow the Province to basically second the
generation from the industrial customers in the case of
emergency?

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah. That'swhat | wasjust referring to.
I may have used the Board as being the reference but there
is amention of an entity that can make that determination.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Andtotheextent that that
generation is 50 cycle, it would need to be converted to 60
cyclein order to go into the grid, agreed?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C. And in those
circumstances the converters, although they are used in the
opposite direction from what was originally intended, those
converters benefit the customers on the system, you would
agree?

MR. BUDGELL.: Inthat hypothetical case they would, yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And in addition when
there is excess demand available or excess capacity
available, both from Corner Brook and from Grand Falls,
that energy can go into the grid for the benefit of
customers, isn't that correct, through the converters?

MR. BUDGELL: You said excess demand available.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: I'm sorry, excess capacity.
| changed the word.

MR. BUDGELL: I'm not aware that there are excess
capacity available at either ...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Fromtimeto time.

MR. BUDGELL: If it occursit's, from what | understand, is
on an inadvertent basis. There was a time period back in
the early 1980s when Bowater Power, when Bowaters at the
mill I guesswere in their period of shutting down the mill or
closing down certain parts of the operations, there were
excess, but since the early 1980s | don't think there has
been any transfer or very little transfer. It's been minimal if
any in the direction of the mill operations to, from
Bowaters, let's say, to the utilities. And may | take this
occasion too to correct ... | made a mistake the other day.
| referred to the Abitibi as being a bank and | was incorrect
in that statement. That was intended to be a purchase and
| apologize for that mistake.
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MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: | knew that it was not
correct. Okay, that'sfine, but it's good to have you ...

MR. BUDGELL: | wasreminded immediately after that and
| just remembered. | should, for the record, correct that.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Now, if you look a Mr.
Odler's evidence on page 23 at lines 29 to 31, do you agree
that if we reviewed IC-41, Revision 2, that the specifically
assigned cost to Abitibi in Grand Falls for the converter for
2002 is $107,521?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't know what the exact figuresfor the
current specific costs of the converters are, but | know
they're not high numbers.

MS.HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Doyou consider $100,000
to be high?

(10:00 a.m.)

MR. BUDGELL: WEél, my reference there was particularly
to the fact that, and | ... you haven't asked the question to
provide the opportunity for me to indicate this, but our
issue, Hydro's issue is not only with, is with the current
assignment of the converters but, and it's not so much as
with the existing assignment costs, and | only make that
reference to the fact that if the converters remain as
common, we're talking about a 30-year old device, put in
place in the mid-'60s, and Hydro's concern, and thisis what
we're trying to aert the other customers to, if it remains
common and if these units were damaged, the replacement
will be shared and it'll be alot higher cost than these costs,
and that's my reference to the 107. If the new converters
had to be installed today, these humbers would be much
higher, so | only make that statement in relevance ...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: However, thereisno plan

MR. BUDGELL: And there's no benefit to the other
customers because nobody else is using the 50 hertz or
requires 50 hertz service.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Other than the benefits
that we've just discussed ...

MR. BUDGELL: Wesell, which benefits that were present
with the current converters back in the 1960s but don't exist
today, anywhere near to the level or the extent of which
they existed in the '60s.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Hydroisat thispoint not
planning to replace those convertersin 2002, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Notin 2002.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Andwe'redealing with ...

MR. BUDGELL: But Hydro has, and we talked yesterday
about the fact that there needed to be some consistency or
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the industrial customers didn't want any surprises, but the
discussions, and I, remiss to mention yesterday as well,
that Hydro has had and started discussions with the
industrial customers, and | believe in particular in regards
to Corner Brook Pulp and Paper on the frequency converter
and its future back in 1989.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: The fact is though that
the frequency converters have, for in excess of 30 years,
been treated as common.

MR. BUDGELL: Insofar ... yes, upto ...
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Assigned ...

MR. BUDGELL: Uptothisparticular hearing, | agree with
you, they have been.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And in addition to that
the converters, the issue for the Board with respect to the
converters is the same issue as with respect to any other
plant that Hydro is talking about in terms of assignment.
The issue is whether there is a substantial benefit to one or
more customers, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: | would agree with that.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Andyou would agreethat
the threshold test for substantial benefit should be the
same regardless of the asset. In other words, you don't
change the definition of substantial depending on the
asset.

MR. BUDGELL: | would agree with that, once one has
established what the substantial is.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Soif avery small benefit
to the, to more than one customer is considered to be
adequate to assign the Great Northern Peninsula
transmission and generation as common, then a very small
benefit or a medium benefit or whatever the Board
determines with respect to converters would also justify
them being assigned as common. The issue is what is
substantial benefit and to make sure that substantial is
applied on the same criteria universally, would you agree?

MR. BUDGELL: | would agree with your characterization
of, that the substantial has to be defined in the context of
the device that you're talking about. Whether substantial
isidentified on the same exact criteriais another matter, but
I would agree that the word "substantial" needs to be
defined in any event.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: You'd also agree that the

MR. BUDGELL: But | wouldn't characterize the small
benefit from the Great Northern Peninsula or for the benefit
of the other systems as being necessarily small. Those
were your words but | won't agree with the characterization
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of small.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And | don't think the
benefit of the converters is small either, Mr. Budgell, but
we're not going to have, we have to agree to disagree on
that. That's adecision for the Board to make.

MR.BUDGELL: Yeah, butl think in the evidencein the RFI
we've indicated, and the indications of Mr. Osler in the
earlier page you showed me on frequency of regulation and
for voltage support there is ample evidence and indication
provided in the RFIs to the questions of the industrial
customers that Hydro does not use these devices in the
current sense to, for this purpose.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.. But without these
converters there would have been no grid, agreed?

MR. BUDGELL: | won't ... there would have been a grid,
yes. There would have been a grid. The question is, is
whether the 50 hertz part of the Corner Brook and Abitibi
operations would have been included in that, but there
would have been agrid.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: I'll come back to that
issue.

MR. BUDGELL: | think the conversation was what form the
grid would have been.

MS.HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. Well thegridinthe
form that we know it today ...

MR.BUDGELL: Yeah. Your questionto meishypothetical
in asense. You said there wouldn't have been a grid. |
have to agree to that ... | can't agree that there would not
have been a grid. There would have been a grid. We're
just talking about the form which the grid takes. It'snot a
yes or no gquestion on the grid.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Andit'salso possiblethat
had, looking at the engineering study at | C-219, that what
would have happened is that Bay d'Espoir would have
been developed in such a way that it would generate 50
cycle power and 60 cycle power.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, and that would be dependent upon
the requirements of those operations requiring the 50 and
60 cycle power. Even back then the requirements were
those particular entities. And you have to remember too
that the Deer Lake Power at that time, which was the entity,
was a utility.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes.

MR. BUDGELL: Whichisan entity that, it's still there but
it's not a utility anymore, it's out of that operations, and
was serving customers more or less the same as
Newfoundland Hydro or Light and Power do now.
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MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: The Town of Corner
Brook was also served by 50 cycle power at that time.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, there was, and | believe it's Sarco
(phonetic) in Buchans, and | believe the Town of Howley
as well, and there might have been other parts there was a
considerable, or not a considerable ... there was a portion
of Deer Lake'sload that was 50 cycle, which was converted,
and similarly was true in central Newfoundland.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.. Let's assume for the
moment that the Bay d'Espoir development, instead of
having been developed as a 60 cycle project with
converters at Grand Falls and Corner Brook, had been
developed in accordance with one of the other options,
which was to generate partially 50 cycle, some 50 cycle and
some 60 cycle energy.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Asthe use of 50 cycle
energy on the province, in the province declined, there
would then have been a need for Hydro to either convert
that 50 cycle power at Bay d'Espoir to 60, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: That's correct.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Orto upgradeitsfacilities
so that it would generate only 60 cycle power.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Could welook at NLH-
16? Thisis an information request generated by Hydro to
theindustrial customers. Isthat right?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And thefirst questionis,
"What is Grand Falls plan with respect to 50 hertz
operation and conversion to 60 hertz of the Abitibi
Consolidated mill in the next five years and why?' And
let's look at the answer. Would you read the answer out,
please?

MR. BUDGELL: Thisisthe"A"?
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes.

MR. BUDGELL: "ATI Grand Falls plan to decommission
the Grand Falls frequency converter in the spring 2002 as
part of the conversion to 60 hertz of the Bishop's Falls
generation. All mill 50 hertz loads will be converted to 60
hertz by that time. Engineering is currently ongoing. This
will bring the mill and generation facilities to a common
standard of 60 hertz. We will also decommission some
aging 50 hertz unit substations."

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: 2002 isthetest year that
this Board is dealing with for the setting of rates, and
would you agree that based upon this answer that if Grand
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Falls project proceeds as planned in 2002 it will no longer
need the converter?

MR. BUDGELL: | would agreethat if this project plans as,
or proceeds as planned, it will no longer, as the answer
indicates.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And, therefore, if the
converter is specificaly assigned from common to Abitibi
in Grand Falls, then it will end up bearing the specifically
assigned costs for al of 20027

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, but I'm not aware that ... it says it
plans to decommission. Whether it has that go ahead from
its corporate office, I'm assuming that thisis still the plan.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: When you look at that,
then if that project goes ahead, we're talking about a very
short period of time with respect to the reassignment of an
asset that has been treated as common for over 30 years?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Now let'slook at question
"B." It says, "What is Corner Brook Pulp and Paper's plan
with respect to 50 hertz operation and conversion to 60
hertz of their mill in Corner Brook and why?' Same
question but with respect to Corner Brook. And with
respect to Corner Brook the situation is quite different, you
would agree?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that isthat Corner
Brook Pulp and Paper, according to its answer, has an 18
megawatt 50 hertz load?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that's associated
with its production equipment, the one and four paper
machines.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And Corner Brook Pulp
and Paper has indicated that the cost to implement
conversion of its equipment to 60 hertz is over $20 million.

MR. BUDGELL: The answer indicatesthat, yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. And it would
neither be cost-effective nor contribute to improved
product quality as far as Corner Brook is concerned. That's
what they've said.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But the most important
part isthat Corner Brook Pulp and Paper has indicated that
it plansto continue utilizing energy at 50 hertz.
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MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: So the 50 cycle Corner
Brook Pulp and Paper will continue to need the 50 cycle
power.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS.HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And henceitwill continue
to, there will continue to be aneed for the converter.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, and only they would need it.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Well ...
MR. BUDGELL: At that location.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Except to the extent that
they provide some ability for standby use for the grid in
emergencies.

MR. BUDGELL: | don't seethat in this answer and | don't

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: No, but | ...
MR. BUDGELL: And| don't know if that'sin evidence, that

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Well, I've asked you the
guestion.

MR. BUDGELL: You gave me a hypothetical case, if the
plant was shut down whether they'd provide ... | indicated
| don't know whether they would provide that generation
to Hydro.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And | asked you about
The Electrical Power Control Act.

MR. BUDGELL: Oh, yes. Under that, if they were ...
obviously under that circumstance.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But without the converter
they would be unable to put their 50 cycle power into the
grid.

MR. BUDGELL: No. They'd only be ableto useit to meet
their 50 cycle load.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: I'd liketo talk about the
wind demonstration project and go to 1C-127. We've had
some discussion or there's already been some discussion
of the wind demonstration project. | understand that the
portion of the cost of that that is proposed to be included
in the 2002 budget is with respect to afeasibility study.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes Actudly it's listed as perform
(phonetic) feasibility study. That's the title. It's not a
project yet.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: The wind demonstration
project is basicaly an experimental project for
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Newfoundland, would you agree?
(10:15a.m.)

MR. BUDGELL: It would be the first, if it went ahead, the
first utility size, and when | say utility size, large-size
development of wind within the province. To that extent |
would agree.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And how many of those
type of projects arein existence in Canada?

MR. BUDGELL:
others.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: The feasibility study,
would you agree that that is something that is looking at
whether it's worth even trying a demonstration project?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, of course.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Why would Hydro feel
that the ratepayers should pay the costs now for a
feasibility study on experimental technology for which they
receive no benefit?

| don't have the number but there are

MR. BUDGELL: This particular proposal was, or the
submission put forward for $200,000 was a nominal amount
to cover the proposal. The actual component to doing the
study, if this project goes ahead, ratepayers will pay no
feasibility costs now for the study. It will only be paid in
the rates. If it doesn't go ahead, Hydro will pay half the
cost of doing the project, and | don't think it's $200,000, but
just for your interest | thought I'd point that out, but
feagbility studies are done by Hydro whether it's on a small
hydro plant, on a thermal plant or on any alternative in
advance of doing a project, and Hydro has to bring these
costsforward as a capital project to the Board because they
cost more than $50,000.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And | guess the question
that | have, and | don't know whether you can answer that
question or not, is the cost of the feasibility study, the
feasibility study itself doesn't generate any benefit for the
customers unless a project goes ahead afterwards, wouldn't
you agree?

MR. BUDGELL: No.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And why don't you
agree?

MR. BUDGELL: Because you have to do a study to find
the knowledge about a particular alternative generation,
and there's benefit in finding out and gaining the
knowledge of whether this generation fits your system or
has economic advantages for your system, and the
knowledge after you complete the study, whether it's good,
i.e., good in the sense that you can proceed with a project
and it looks good, or if the study determined that this
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project has no benefit to the system, both of those results
are beneficial to my regard to the knowledge the planner
hasin going forward. To say what, to agree with what your
statement, your question is asking me, to say that a
customer should only pay for studies that give a answer
that ends up doing the project essentially, so the
Corporation has no way of studying projects because it's
always going to take a risk that the study is going to say,
after you get the study done and you do your economic
analysis following that and it says, well, this study has no
merit or it can't, | can't proceed with it, then it's put on a
shelf and we eat the cost. | don't think utilities anywhere
operate on that basis.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And you don't know for
sure about that, would you?

MR. BUDGELL: No, | wouldn't know for sure but, | mean,
a business entity has to have the ability to study issues
and address those issues and find out what the answers
are.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And the questionis, who
should bear the cost of that and when they should bear
that cost.

MR. BUDGELL: Weéll, yes, the question is whether the
Board feels that it's right that the Utility should be
proceeding forward and studying alternate energy for the
benefit of consumers with respect, because the technology
is applied elsewhere in the world, in North Americaand in
Canada, and should Hydro be looking at that as an
aternative for the Newfoundland system, does the Board
feel that the customers can benefit from the knowledge
obtained through such a study. That's the question that |
would like the Board to address in approving this particular
project. It'snot a question of after the hindsight when you
do the study whether what the answer is, then you make a
determination whether it's beneficial or not. | would rather
that the decision made on this is a study that benefits the
consumer, this knowledge, whatever it says, because we
will have or we have from time to time other entities
approaching us wanting, right, to look at this type of stuff
and how can we address it? We need this knowledge and
you can't get this knowledge unless you go and do a
study.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: So theissuethen for the
Board is to determine whether Hydro has provided
sufficient information to justify to make adecision that itis
worthwhile to even go as far as a feasibility study. You
would agree ...

MR. BUDGELL: No.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.
decision?

... that's the Board's
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MR. BUDGELL: No. | would rather theway | put it earlier.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C. And what's the
difference?

MR. BUDGELL: Thedifferenceis, the differenceis on the
record, but the ... what I'm saying is that the Board should
address itself to the question that Hydro is putting forth a
feasibility study on an alternate energy source in the
context of the island interconnected system. Does the
Board feel that it's worthwhile for Hydro to gain that
knowledge for the benefit of the customers on the systems,
whatever the result of that knowledge is? That's what I'm
saying the Board should address in regards to this
particular proposal.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: The Board has to be
satisfied, wouldn't you agree, as the regulator, that it has
sufficient information available to it to decide that the, that
even the cost of the feasibility study is worthwhile?

MR. BUDGELL: Wéll, your inferenceisthere assuming, I'm
assuming that the Board has more knowledge than the
study has and it knows the answer now and it can say yes
or no to the going ahead with the study. The Board
doesn't know this. We're trying to give information to the
overal system on this particular matter. The Board
obviously can't look at this and say we think the answer to
this is yes or no, and on that basis | should approve this
project. Hydro has provided the information here clearly in
the nature of the project that it isafeasibility study. Weal
know what that is, and the project will not proceed to the
next stage, which is to go to a project, without their
approval.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Well, | won't belabour the
point because obviously we're not going to agree. Let'sgo
on to the issue of transformer losses.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: It is my understanding
that Hydro's customers are metered on the low side of
transformers, would you agree?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes. It'scheaper to provide metering on
low side, low voltages rather than high voltages.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And it is adso my
understanding that that means that when the meters are
read, the readings reflect the energy after losses. In other
words, the losses have been, are not accounted for in those
meter readings.

MR. BUDGELL: Which losses are you referring to?
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Transmission losses.
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.
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MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And transformer losses,
I'm sorry.

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah, yes, | agree.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: | sometimes have the
same problem with transformer and transmission as | do
with Baie Verte and Burin, so you have to bear with me. It
was aso my understanding that depending on the
customer, and also in some circumstances depending on
where an interconnection, if you like, occurs between
Hydro's system and the customer, that customers can
receive, the transmission to those customers is sometimes
a230kV line, sometimesa 138 kV line and sometimes a 66
kV line. Would you agree?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that in fact in the
case of the industrial customers, Abitibi in Stephenville is
served by a230kV line.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Abitibi in Grand Fallsis
served by a230 kV line.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS.HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: North Atlantic Refiningis
served by a230 kV line.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And Corner Brook Pulp
and Paper is served by a66 kV line?

MR. BUDGELL: Wéll, there's 230 kV to the Massey Drive
Terminal Station and is transformed to 66 over Deer Lake
Power's line down to the mill.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.. And in fact, as |
understand it, because the 230 kV line that serves the
Massey Drive, that goes into the Massey Drive Terminal
Station serves two customers, which is Newfoundland
Power and Corner Brook Pulp and Paper, the transformers
there are treated as common?

MR. BUDGELL: No. Corner Brook and Deer Lake wetreat
as one customer. It's the fact that it's the mill and
Newfoundland Power. That's the two customers.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes.

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah. You referred to Deer Lake and
Corner Brook Pulp and Paper, | believe.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: | meant Deer Lake and
Newfoundland Power.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: | thought that's what |
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said. Okay.
MR. BUDGELL: Youmay ... | didn't hear it that way.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: That's okay.

MR. BUDGELL: | thought it was, you mentioned the two
mill entities.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Now, so when you talk
about Massey Drive, there are two classes of customer who
receive power from that station, that terminal station?

MR. BUDGELL: | agree.

MS.HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: AndoneisNewfoundland
Power for the purpose of serving its customersin that area.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And the other is Corner
Brook Pulp and Paper.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C..: And because the
transformers at that location serve those two classes of
customers, those transformers are treated as common?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And thelosseson, up to
that point, is also treated as a common cost?

MR. BUDGELL: | believe so, yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that means that a
that particular location neither Newfoundland Power nor
Corner Brook Pulp and Paper has to absorb the loss, the
transformer losses from 230 kV to 66 kV?

MR. BUDGELL: They pick up their proportionate share of
the overall system losses based on their load.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Whichthey sharewith al
the other customers.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.. And so the other
customers are also paying a share of those losses.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: With the existing system
asit existstoday, at Stephenville the losses from 230 down
to its utilization level are aso absorbed by the system,
correct, treated as common?

MR. BUDGELL: At Stephenville?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: At the present time.
MR. BUDGELL: Yes, up till this hearing.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Uptill this hearing.
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MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And the sameistruefor
al of the other customers, other industrial customers. For
example, NARL does not pay its transformation |osses?

MR. BUDGELL: I'm not aware of whether they do or they
don't. I'm not sureinregardsto ... I'mnot ...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: If you go from 230 ...

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah. | don't know who ... if yougoto a
particular customer, particular transformer, I'm not, | don't
have the information available here who is paying for what
inregardsto losses. That'saratesissue.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Areyou ableto deal with
the issue of transformer losses?

MR. BUDGELL: Only inagenera sense.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.. Because it's my
understanding that you're the person to deal with the
contractual issues for the industrial customers.

MR. BUDGELL: | can assist with that, yes.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. Well, if there's....

MR. BUDGELL: | just ... if you ask meaparticular question
about whether in the current billing to a particular customer
whether transformer losses are in that billing, | don't have
that information immediately available to say a "yea" or
"nay" to that question, that's al. I'd have to seek that
information.

(10:30a.m.)

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And can you outline what
Hydro's current proposa is with respect to transformer
losses?

MR. BUDGELL: Only to the extent of my involvement with
it, that | understand that for specifically assigned
equipment where the metering is on the low side, Hydro
wishes to increase the kilowatt hour sales to that customer
by the amount of the losses going through those
transformers, and again, that's the level that | understand
the situation.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Theissue...

MR. BUDGELL: Which in my view, just step back a
second, which | understand is, it's an omission on our part.
It's not a matter we're changing things. 1t should have been
done perhaps previous to now. That's my understanding.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Areyoufamiliar with how
other utilities treat transformer |osses?

MR. BUDGELL: Not in adetailed sense, no.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: The...
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MR. BUDGELL: Theissue about losses is an issue about
where the billing is done and where the delivery point is
done and sometimes it's where who owns the transformer,
who doesn't own the transformer. There's an area of
complications there. I'm sure al of the utilities have
different ways of dealing with that.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.
ultimately isfairness, you would agree?

MR. BUDGELL: Of courseitis. It should befairness, yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And therefore the Board
would have to look at whether the current treatment of
transformer losses isfair, you would agree?

But the question

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And they would aso have
tolook at ...

MR. BUDGELL: No. | think the Board has looked at
fairness current ... | would assume. Y ou mean as proposed
right now, this Board ...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: No,no. | mean ... well, the
thing is, we don't know whether the Board has ever
specifically addressed its mind to the issue of these
transformer losses, and, but they do have to look at
whether ... if they're going to look at changing ...

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah. It hasn't been an issuein the past.
Let'sput it that way.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But Hydroisproposing a
change to the treatment of transformer losses, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: So one of the things that
the Board is going to have to determine is whether Hydro's
proposed new treatment of the transformer lossesisfair.

MR.BUDGELL: Yes,and | remember now back in, | believe
it was '92 or '93, either at the rate referral or the generic
hearing that just followed, that there was an issue in
regards to the Board providing some direction in regards to
reassignment of losses with, in the case of specific
assignment of assets. It might not have been transformers.
In that case | think it might have been transmission. |
remember something about Port aux Basques, the Port aux
Basques system, and losses and how it should be treated,
so there had been some consideration in the past by the
Board on this particular issue, past boards, | should say.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And in addition to that
though, in addition to the Board having to look at whether
Hydro's proposed new treatment of the transformer losses
isfair, if the Board determines that it's not fair, then it will
have to addressits mind to what isfair.
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MR. BUDGELL: Of course so, yes, | agree.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that may or may not
be the current situation.

MR. BUDGELL: Certainly.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And the current situation
is that everybody is metered on the low side of the
transformers and in the new proposal they will continue to
be metered on the low side of the transformers, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: That'sright.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But in the case of
customers who are served by a transformer that is either
specifically assigned or owned by them, they will have to
pick up all of the transformer losses.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But in the case of
customers who are served by atransformer which is either
treated, is treated as common or shared with another
customer, they will not have to bear all of those transformer
losses.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes. They will bear their proportionate
share of common assets and |osses on the system.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Isthereabenefit to Hydro
of delivering energy at 230 kV versus delivering at 1387?

MR. BUDGELL: It depends.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Explain.

MR. BUDGELL.: It depends on the load we're delivering
and it depends on the distance over which that load is
being delivered.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: When Hydro delivers at
230 kV versus 138 kV, thereisalevel of transformation that
does not need to take place, you would agree, that in order
to get from the 230 to the 138 there are additional, there is
transformers involved?

MR. BUDGELL: Oh, yes, of course. To change voltages
anywhere on the system, transformers have to be involved.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And similarly to get from
230 to 66, transformers are involved.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Andif thosetransformers
are common, are treated as common, then the customer who
isserved by the lower voltage line, i.e. either the 138 kV or
the 66 kV line, has also benefitted from sharing the
transformer losses with all the other customers on the
system, agreed?

MR. BUDGELL.: If he'sheen delivered power over common
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network.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: That'sright.
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And if the transformers
are, that go from the 230 to the 138 or the 230 to the 66 are
part of the common system, agreed?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But the customer who
receives at 230 kV does not impose those costs on the
system, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Does not impose which costs?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: The costs of going to the
138 or to the 66.

MR. BUDGELL: If there were a customer around that can
utilize 230 kV voltages directly in its process, then that
would betrue, i.e., no transformation.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But under your current
proposal, if you take Abitibi Stephenville as an example, all
of the losses in going from the 230 kV at which it is
delivered to the terminal station, delivered to its
transformers, al of the losses in going from the 230 kV to
the 13 roughly ...

MR. BUDGELL: Whatever they ... | believe they have two
utilization voltage ...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.
utilizations, | think a13.8 and 6.9.

They have two

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: So...
MR. BUDGELL: All of those losses are borne by them.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: All of those ... under the
current proposal, all of those losses will be borne by them.

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah, and ideally Hydro would be ... |
mean, technically it would be preferable for Hydro if the
delivery point was a 230 kV to go out and hang equipment
off the transmission line at 230 kV, measure the system at
that location, and hand Abitibi a bill at that location, but
that's too costly, way too costly, because equipment is
expensive, so what Hydro has done is put this billing
behind the transformers. The losses got lost ... as we go
through the bill or the metering, it can't now hand the bill to
Abitibi to reflect those losses, so it adds it back on, and
what we're doing here is we are providing the delivery
exactly to the point where the delivery is being asked for,
the 230 kV. That's the net effect of what we're doing.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yeah, and | understand
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the net effect of what you're doing, but my interest isin the
absorption of thelosses. And just bear with me and follow
through with my questions and | think we will get through
this alot faster. | mean, | understand that you have things
that you want to explain but ...

MR. BUDGELL:
through this faster.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. (laughter)

| have a definite interest in getting

MR. BUDGELL: | apologizeif I'm prolonging it.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Wdll, | don't think you are
particularly, but the thing is that Abitibi in Stephenville,
Hydro delivers energy to the transformers at 230 kV.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And the utilization
voltages are 13.8 kV and 6.9 kV.

MR. BUDGELL.: | believe so, yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And sothe energy that is
received at those transformers has to go from the 230 to the
13.8 and the 6.9.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And in that processthere
arelosses.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And under the current
arrangement, the one that exists today in 2001, those losses
are paid for by al of the customers of Hydro.

MR. BUDGELL: Through an omission of Hydro, yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes. Under the current
proposal, the one that's before the Board for 2002, Abitibi
would be expected to bear al of the losses associated with
going from 230 kV to 13.8 and 6.9.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Now, Newfoundland
Power receives its energy and so does Corner Brook Pulp
and Paper at 66 kV, correct? They are served by ... theline
that servesthem isa66 kV line.

MR. BUDGELL: Hydro provides the transformation,
provides 230 kV to 66 kV transmission at the Massey Drive
Terminal Station to service those customers.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay.
MR. BUDGELL: They're Hydro-owned transformers.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And asaresult under the
... let's just go back a second. Under the current situation

EXECUTECH Inc. - 579-4451

Page 12



12

13

14

15

16
17
18

19
20

21

22
23
24
25
26

27
28
29
30
31

32

33

34

35
36
37
38

39
40
a1
42

43
44
45

November 8, 2001

P.U.B. Hearing - Newfoundland & L abrador Hydro - Rate Hearing

MR. BUDGELL: The current rules of assignment.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Current rules. Those
costs in going from 230 kV to 66 kV are paid by all of the
customers, they're common.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, yes, because the asset is common
under the rules of assignment and therefore the losses track
that same methodol ogy.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But under the current
situation, the losses associated with going from 66 kV
down to their utilization voltages of either 13.8 or 6.9,
they're borne by those customers.

MR. BUDGELL: It'stheir equipment. We'renot ...
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: It's... okay.
MR. BUDGELL: That'sdown in their system.
(10:45 a.m.)

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: So at the present time,
Hydro's position is that at the present time there is an
unfairness, you would agree?

MR. BUDGELL: At the present time. When you refer to
the present time ...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Right now.

MR. BUDGELL: Right now there, yes. Right now there's
inequity in the current billing process associated with
losses, and what we're trying to do is correct that process
through this particular hearing in the way we're allocating
losses.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. Now, as |
understand it, Hydro's position in terms of the unfairness
isthat al of the customers on the grid at the present time
are sharing in the losses for Abitibi a Stephenville from 230
down to their utilization voltages ...

MR. BUDGELL: | understand that's the case.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.; ... of 13.8.
MR. BUDGELL: Yes, | understand that's the case.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Whereaswhenyou get to
Massey Drive, the customer, al of the customers of the
grid are only sharing in the losses for Newfoundland Power
and Corner Brook Pulp and Paper down to 66 kV.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, because that's the, where Hydro's
grid ends. There's no alocation of losses, no alocation of
equipment below the 230, 66, at Massey Drive, at that
location.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And those customers, as
we discussed, Newfoundland Power and Corner Brook Pulp
and Paper, they're absorbing their loss, all the losses below
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66 kV.

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah, and it's in their meter. They've
aready been metered for it. They ... when we ... we've
metered on the high side of those transformers that step
those, the 66 to a lower voltage. We've already counted
that in, so there is no need of going down to the lower side.
It'sin their system how they ...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Alright.

MR. BUDGELL.: ... what they use...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: No, no.

MR. BUDGELL: It'sup to themselves.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: We are agreed.
MR. BUDGELL: Yeah.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Under the new proposal,
the ...

MR. BUDGELL: | didn't know we were agreeing because
we keep coming back and back ... | don't know what we're

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Well | wasn't sure what
we were agreeing to either, and | think now | know that on
that we agree.

MR. BUDGELL: Oh, okay.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Under the new proposal,
the current proposal for 2002, Abitibi in Stephenville, asan
example, will pay al of thelossesin going from 230 kV to
13.8 or 6.9, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: That's correct, associated with the
specifically assigned assets at that location.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But under the current
proposal ...

MR. BUDGELL: I'm sorry, | said specifically assigned ...
wrong. Associated with customer owned assets at that
location.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But under the current
proposal, the one for 2002, Newfoundland Power and
Corner Brook Pulp and Paper will still only, their situation
won't change.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, because the situation hasn't changed
in regards to assignment.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Soin effect the reverse
has occurred, would you agree, which is now, under the
new proposal, Newfoundland Power and Corner Brook Pulp
and Paper are benefitting from the system paying for, or the
customers of the whole system paying for the losses from
230 to 66, which is a benefit that Abitibi in Stephenville will
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no longer have.

MR.BUDGELL: Yeah. Werecorrecting amistakewe made
in the past.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And the issueiswhether
the correction isjust as unfair as the existing situation.

MR. BUDGELL: Waéll, if you change the ... the concept of
customers on the common system sharing costs, | think
you have to agree with that. The issue here is on
specifically assign ... who bears the cost of losses on
specifically assigned or owned equipment where metering
is on the low side and losses have occurred before the
metering, and that's what the issue comes down to, and
what we're trying to do is correct that.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And canwegoto NLH-9?
You'll see that the fourth question says, "Please provide
the New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Hydro-Quebec and
Manitoba Hydro rate schedule for different voltage levels
and associated transformer loss adjustments. Are there
differences for customer owned versus utility owned
transformers?’ And if we could go to the answer to that,
which | think is (d). For Hydro-Quebec, according to
Newfoundland Hydro's answer ... sorry, it's our answer. It's
yours to us, okay. The Hydro-Quebec web site indicates
that there's a discount for, to customers who have a
delivery voltage of 230 kV.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And ...

MR. BUDGELL: 230, okay.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: You seethat?

MR. BUDGELL: Yesah.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Thethird last line?
MR. BUDGELL: Yeah.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Andin New Brunswick
there is an indication that there is an increase when people
receive at 4 kV or 25 kV, there's sort of an add-on to the
rates.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, and my impression of these
discounts and the add-on is that Hydro-Quebec has
developed the "L" rate on a certain assumption and then
there's add-ons, subtraction, plus or minus, based on the
customer's utilization and the cost of transformers, because
obviously it's the ... the different transformer classes are
going to cost a different amount of money. If they're
buying awhole bunch of little transformers, they can get it
at one cost. If they're buying large, and their system, 735
to 230 let's say, or 230 to something el se, these transformers
have different costs so they're, they've set up an "L" rate
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which is at a certain delivery level which is on the system,
and what they're saying is that you'll be charged plus or
minus from that, depending on your utilization voltage.
Now, I'm thinking part of this cost is just not losses. It
could be the transformer cost and variances in the service
to those customers. That's my perspective, but again that's
my assumptions, but if the information is not here, but
that's what | understand.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that's because there
are most costs imposed on the system when you convert
to below the 230 kV.

MR. BUDGELL: Again, dependent on the load.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay, thank you. It'sa
good time to break and | am finished transformer losses.

MR.NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Thank you very much.
WeEe'll reconvene at 11:10.

(break)
(11:15)

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Thank you.
Henley Andrews, when you're ready, please?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Mr. Chairman, I'm nearly
finished, but | suppose given where I've come from that
might not be a lot of consolation. 1'd like to talk about
system load factor. And would you agree that one of the
important objectives of this hearing is for the purpose of
alocating costs between the customers is the
establishment of the systems real load factor?

Ms.

MR. BUDGELL.: Areyou speaking from the context of the
overall system?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: The overal, Hydro's
overal system?

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah. Weéll, | would expect Hydro's
overall system load factor, for the purpose of this hearing,
is established in the load forecast provided.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay.
MR. BUDGELL: For rate setting purposes, that is.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. Now, I'd likeyouto
take a look at your Schedule 5-A, which is your second
supplemental testimony. In order to calculate the load
factor for Corner Brook Pulp and Paper how would you go
about it?

MR. BUDGELL: | would take the energy of the customer in
the year, divide it by the number of hoursin the year, which
would give me the average demand, and | would divide that
number by the peak indicated for that customer.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay, so in the case of
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Corner Brook Pulp and Paper, as an example, from a
mathematical perspective, and based upon the revised
forecast for 2002, which is the second column in the
megawatts table and the second column in the gigawatts
hours table for 2002, you would agree?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that mathematical
calculation we would take the 548.2 megawatt hours?

MR. BUDGELL: Gigawatt hours.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Gigawatt hours, I'm sorry.
Convert them to megawatt hours?

MR. BUDGELL: Average megawatts.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yeah. No, wait now, so
that we have ... my understanding is that 548.2 gigawatt
hours is 548,200 megawatt hours.

MR. BUDGELL: I'msorry. Yes, you'reright.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that would be the
numerator of the fraction, the top of your fraction?

MR. BUDGELL: Well ...
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. Alright.

MR. BUDGELL: The fraction in which you're going to
divide 8760 into?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes.
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that 8760 is the
number of hoursin the year?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And then you would
divide that answer by the revised peak of 67 megawatts?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And for Corner Brook
Pulp and Paper that would be a forecast |oad factor of 93.4
percent?

MR. BUDGELL: | haven't got the calculation here but |
would expect that it would be a high load factor.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Andif wewereto do the
same calculation for Newfoundland Power, mathematically
we would take the same components and do the same
math?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And to do the system
load factor we'd have to look at the line on the bottom of
that table which is Hydro's requirement?
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MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Andif wewereto do that,
based upon the revised schedule, we would take the 6625.6
gigawatt hours in megawatt hours and convert it by the
8760 hoursin ayear, right?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS.HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Andthendivideit further,
again, by the 1317.9 megawatts shown in the second ... at
the bottom of the megawatts for 2002 forecast?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And do you know what
the answer to that would be in terms of system load factor?

MR. BUDGELL: | haven't got that with me right now.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. Would you ... do
you have a calculator there?

MR. BUDGELL: On the stand?
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yeah.
MR. BUDGELL: Never. It'sagoldenrule.

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: You're awiser man
than | thought.

MR. BUDGELL: | realy don't even know if | can add
accurately sitting here.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Believeme, | understand.
It's not easy to work with a calculator sitting here either.
Would you ...

MR. BUDGELL: | wouldn't be surprised if it was
somewhere between 55 and 60 percent, and that's off the
top of my head.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. |I'm going to ask
you to undertake to verify that the answer to that is 57.39
percent, and if you don't agree to tell me what you think the
answey is?

MR. BUDGELL: | can undertake to do that, yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Would you agree that
under the 1993 cost of service methodology decision of the
Board the classification of hydraulic plant is done by
system load factor?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't know those details. That'sin the
cost of service.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay, so the person who
would be best to answer that question would be?

MR. BUDGELL: Mr. Brickhill, | assume.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Mr. Brickhill.
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MR. BUDGELL: | will indicate that to be careful, because
I'm not sure in the cost of service whether load factors are
exactly the same as we're calculating here.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And do you know why
that might be?

MR. BUDGELL: Justthat | know in some cases it wouldn't
be because, for instance, I'm only referring to it in the
reference that we did alittle earlier on, we did a calculation
of Newfoundland Power but there are adjustments, if you
remember, we discussed the other day in regardsto ...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Being the generation
credit?

MR. BUDGELL: ... credits and stuff like that end up the
load factor isdifferent. I'm just alerting you to that fact, the
details of which I'm not reporting on here.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But, | think you would
agree, or | hope you would agree that if, for the purpose of
establishing system load factor, you remove from
Newfoundland Power's load the generation credit, the
impact of that would be to distort the actual system load
factor?

MR. BUDGELL: I'm not sureto distort. You'd end up with
adifferent calculation, the answer would be different than
the sales load factor.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: The generation credit is
compensation to Newfoundland Power for the fact that it
has standby units available to meet peak, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, andit'sbeen along standing premise
and orders by this Board that Hydro give Newfoundland
Power credit for those resources.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And again, as weve
talked about so often in the last couple of days, there may
very well be an issue as to whether the method by which
that is done is fair? That could be an issue, you would
agree?

MR. BUDGELL: Itcould beanissue. | don't remember it ...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: No, but | mean, it could
be?

MR. BUDGELL: ...youand | discussing it as an issue.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But, youwould also agree
that ... | think you would have to agree that if you take out
of the system load calculation for the purpose of dealing
with the classification of hydraulic costs a portion of the
load which Newfoundland Power actually uses, it will shift
costs to the other customers, both Hydro rural and the
industrial customers?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes. | think the intent that the Board, in
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the past, asked Hydro to include in its rate calculations a
credit from Newfoundland Power was intended exactly for
that purpose, to transfer costs for Newfoundland Power's
resources being available to other customers on the
system.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.. But, | know we did
discuss, sometime in the last couple of days, that in the end
there ends up being two forms or two types of
compensation to Newfoundland Power based upon the
way that it's done. In the first case Newfoundland Power
receives an actual credit on its bills in the amount of the
generation credit, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: I'm not aware that that happens.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Wdll, it'sdemand ... for
billing purposes it's billed less, its demand is reduced, it's
actually billed less, don't you think? | thought you told me
that the other day.

MR. BUDGELL: | don't recal. Newfoundland Power only
gets billed on the basis of energy.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes.

MR. BUDGELL: Soit'sonly the energy times the rate that
was set for Newfoundland Power.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Butitsrate contains...
MR. BUDGELL: Was determined on the basis of ...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Of both demand and
energy?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, agreed, | agree with that, yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And the generation credit

is contained in the demand that forms the component of
that bill?

MR. BUDGELL: That'sright.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And in addition, the
system load factor ends up being adjusted because the
credited amount is taken into account there?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't know if the system load factor. The
load factor for Newfoundland Power in the allocation gets
adjusted for the credit.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes, but because system
load factor is utilized for the purpose of allocating the
hydraulic costs ...

MR. BUDGELL: Again, you'rein an areanow that ...

MS.HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay, and maybel'll leave
that for Mr. Brickhill.

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah, it would be preferable.
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MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: | want to deal for afew
minutes with the issue of the prudence of the Great
Northern Peninsula interconnection. And isit correct that
Hydro has been using an assumption that as long as a
project has a positive net present value over 15 yearsit is
... that that's an acceptable measure?

MR. BUDGELL: Hydro will ... the system planning will
bring forth to management projects for approva having a
net present value preference at the end of ... a positive net
value preference at the end of 15 years for interconnection
projects. WEeIl bring them forth to management for
approval.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that in some
circumstances Hydro will also recommend approva of
interconnection projects that have a dightly longer than 15
year period for a positive net present value, would you
agree?

MR. BUDGELL: There's not one that comes to mind but
there could be circumstances that that would occur. The 15
years is only an arbitrary chosen hurdle to cover off the
risk that future events may change the economic
parameters that we included in the study.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And who has chosen that
15 year criteria?

MR. BUDGELL: Management committee of Hydro.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And has that 15 year
criteria ever been approved by the Board since 1997,
because your capital projects...

MR. BUDGELL: | don't think so, but the Board has
approved projects based on that premise. Again, I'd have
to infer whatever that means.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Inyour evidence there's
areference to the Quetta Study?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: The Quetta Study was
explicitly intended to review the quality of electric power
service in the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador,
correct?

MR. BUDGELL: If that'swhat the terms of reference in that
study indicates, but | thought it was atechnical operational
review of Hydro and how Hydro carries on its operations.
| think there was a similar review of Light and Power.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. Let'sgo... I'm not
sure that we're actually disagreeing, but we're using
different language.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Solet'sgo to NP-30, and
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page 1 of the Quetta Report.
MR. ORIELLY: That's not available electronically.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: No, so well haveto use
the hard copy, and all we need to do isto go to page 1, and
that's the small "i" page 1.

MR. BUDGELL: | havethat.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Uh hum, and you seein
the summary it says that Quetta Inc. and Associates were
engaged by the Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
of Newfoundland and Labrador to provide the Board with
a review of the quality of electric power service in the
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes. Served by Newfoundland and
Labrador Hydro.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Exactly.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, that's in the ... you mentioned the
summary. Theintroduction, | takeit?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yeah, it'sinthe summary
introduction on the page that's sort of asmall "i"?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And it's actualy also
contained on page 1 of the ... which | want you to go to
under the introduction, page 1 of the actual report.

MR. BUDGELL: That's the page that | was looking at.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay, and you'll see it
from the second paragraph of that, that it says the study is
to include a review of the planning, operational,
maintenance and safety practices of Hydro from the
standpoint of efficiency, reliability and safety of the power
system?

MR. BUDGELL: That's correct.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: So thereisno indication
here that Quetta was evauating Hydro's economic
evaluations of projects. It was simply the integrity of the
system and the way the system is operated, the electrical
system, would you agree?

MR. BUDGELL:
question again?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. Would you agree
with me that Quetta was not asked to review Hydro's
economic and financial planning?

(11:30)

MR. BUDGELL: Wél, I'm aware that they asked for all our
reports completed and studies completed in that regard.

I'm not sure. Could you repeat that
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MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But thisreport does not
deal with an evauation of economic and financial
planning?

MR. BUDGELL: It talks about it in the planning section
and planning methodology.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But it does not comment
on the economics of individual projects that Hydro has
undertaken?

MR. BUDGELL: It provided commentary in regards to the
quality of the reports that were donein that regard.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.. But now whether the
decision was economic or not economic, the decision to
proceed?

MR. BUDGELL: No.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Would you agree that
Hydro has assumed that, for its base case, that once you
interconnect ... now, this is when you're doing your
interconnection studies. That Hydro assumes, for your
base case, that once you interconnect a previously isolated
area that area can be supplied 100 percent of the time with
Holyrood generation and that no increased system
expansion pressure will occur?

MR. BUDGELL: The management's direction provided to
the system planning department in doing the studiesis that
the 15 year (inaudible) line would use that assumption.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay, so that is actually
adirection from management?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes,itis.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But in fact, your own
Great Northern Peninsula studies indicate that the true
incremental costs of new load are higher than the Holyrood
generation cost?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes. In the context of that particular
analysis we added in the study a sensitivity case reflecting
other marginal costs.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay.
MR. BUDGELL: Based on anisolated island alternative.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And when you are
looking at the incremental costs of a new load you're calling
that a system incremental energy rate in your studies,
correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. CanwegotolC-
203? And, in particular, to 203(5). Okay. I'm actually
looking for the document in the Great Northern Peninsula
interconnection study.
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MR. BUDGELL: | think that's 203(6). Which one areyou
looking for?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Theonethat'sattachedin
my binder, and shows at the top as | C-203(5).

MR. BUDGELL.: Isitthethick study or isit the, what | refer
to...

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: It's October 18th, 1993.
MR. BUDGELL: The 93 study.

MR. ORIELLY: That would not be available electronically.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: No, | knew that.

MR. BUDGELL: | haveit as attachment 203(5), similar to
yourself,

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay, and would you go
to page 257 And just take aminute to look at the paragraph
which is, the number of it is 3.2.4, which is sensitivity to
interconnection energy costs, and just tell me whether this
paragraph, which runs over to the top of page 26, confirms
that system incremental energy costs for the Great Northern
Peninsula are actually higher than the Holyrood, additional
Holyrood thermal generation costs? And perhapsit'll make
your life easier if you take alook at Table 8 at the bottom of

page 26.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, I'mlooking at that. They are higher.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: So the reason that you
use the Holyrood thermal costs, which is the additional
generation of therma energy as your basis for your
interconnection studies is because that's the direction from
the management committee?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, that's correct.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But that does not reflect

the actua costs, the rea incremental costs of
interconnection?
MR. BUDGELL: It could in some instances, but in

expanding the system ... in doing these studies in the past
we've used a combination of either average system costs,
system incremental costs for Holyrood, or costs in a
Labrador in-feed case, and a cost in an isolated case, so the
management direction was based on what was believed to
be an onerous situation in this particular case, because it
was a large interconnection we looked at the system
incremental costs.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And if you look at the
bottom of page 25 your study indicates that, given the size
of the St. Anthony/Roddickton system load, it was felt
necessary to investigate whether or not additional system
costs would be incurred with the interconnect, ie, for
capital and operating above and beyond thermal generation
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at Holyrood, right?
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And you used successive
computer runs? In other words, you feed the appropriate
information on the St. Anthony/Roddickton system load
over the forecast period into a computer model ?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes. We looked at the differential
between two cases for the interconnected system, one with
and one without.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay, and that computer
model generated a result which is shown in the table, Table
8 at the bottom of page 26, which indicates that the
expected system incremental costs associated with the
proposed GNP interconnection of St. Anthony/Roddickton
area is higher or is expected to be higher than just
Holyrood incremental generation?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes,
(11:45)

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And again, if you look at
Table 8 at the bottom of page 26, using the computer
generated expected expenses, the payback period would be
greater than 24 years?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Would you agree that
since interconnection the GNP transmission line has had
significant problems with salt, ice and other types of things
above and beyond what was expected?

MR. BUDGELL: | think there was expected, in any event,
there'd be problems on the GNP, given the distance and
that lead to the fact of why generation was left in the area.
If I might just step back, because | don't want the Board to
be left with the wrong impression here. Y ou're reading from
astudy, and | just quoted an analysis from a study that did
not lead to the conclusion to go ahead with the St.
Anthony/Roddickton diesel.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes.

MR. BUDGELL: There was a subsequent study that
reflected the updates in the costs and the fact that we got
money from the federal government initiative that lead to
the approval of the project.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that's also contained

MR. BUDGELL: 203(6), | believe.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yeah.

MR. BUDGELL: And additional information in my
supplemental evidence.
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MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But, the system ... in that
study you also assumed, for the purpose of anaysis, the
same assumptions that you've been directed before, which
is an assumption that the only increased costs would be
Holyrood thermal generation?

MR. BUDGELL: 1 think we looked at both.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes.

MR. BUDGELL: Welooked at Holyrood, and aswell asthe
system incremental.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But while the payback
period, using the new assumptions, is lower than 24 years,
itisstill in excess of 15, would you agree?

MR. BUDGELL: I'mjust trying to find the table so | can
check it.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. Because my
recollection is that that is the case.

MR. BUDGELL: It's attachment 5 to my supplemental
evidence, and it's indicating there that the ... at that
particular time, with the changes in the cost and what have
you, the no federal funding case we had a payback period
of 15 years, and with the system incremental energy rate
and with the $5 million federal funding the payback was 18
years.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: That's correct, and 18
yearsisin excess of your 15 year guideline?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, but, it's still economic. It'll be
economic if it crossed over anywhere within the study
period. Were not talking here about economics, we're
talking here only in regards to management wanting
projects brought forth for their view, rather than us putting
them on the shelf. They wanted to look only at projects
that had ... that passed that hurdle. That's not an indication
of economics, and | don't want you to leave the impression
with the Board that it is. Itisn't.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: You note... could you go
to page 9 of your supplementa testimony? Do you have
that?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: You note, at page 9, that
Hydro's 1994 analysis of the GNP interconnection assumes
that for the year 1996 there'd be $141,570 per year in line
maintenance costs after interconnection?

MR. BUDGELL: Here at the top of the page?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yeah. When you get on
the screen the pages are always ...

MR. BUDGELL: Oh, | wasreading frommy ...
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MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay, yes, but the....
MR. ORIELLY': Isthisonein supplemental evidence?
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.. Supplemental evidence.
MR. ORIELLY: The second supplement?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: The first supplement.
Y eah, the first supplement.

MR. ORIELLY: Page9?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Page 9. There it is.
Correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: The evidence, as |
understand the evidence that has been filed, the costs for
line maintenance have been a fair bit in excess of that
amount?

MR. BUDGELL: | havent seen any numbers for that
expense ... to that effect.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay, and have there
been problems with the transmission line in the Great
Northern Peninsula above and beyond what Hydro had
expected, maintenance problems?

MR. BUDGELL: | can't speak to the operating.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay, and aso at the top
of page 9 of your supplemental testimony you indicate that
the total operating and maintenance cost for standby
plants under the interconnected alternative is forecast to be
$667,900?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And in the same 1994
study the operating and maintenance costs for the
Roddickton wood chip plant alone in 1996 were expected to
be $1.27 million?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, and| think that reflects the difference
between an operating and a standby plant.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And that was regarded as
being part of your fixed costs?

MR. BUDGELL.: Standby plant costs?
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes.

MR. BUDGELL: Thismight befixed, fixed ... aportion of it
might be fixed vis-avis saaries, a portion might be just
maintenance variable costs.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. If | wanted to ask
some questions on 1-CP verses 2-CP, | presume the right
person to address that to would be Mr. Brickhill?
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MR. BUDGELL: If it'sinregard to the analysisin support
of the 2-CP | may be able to be of assistance. If it'sin
regards to the application within the rate structure and in
the cost of service Mr. Brickhill isthe proper person.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. Well, | havetwo
questions which | think need to be put to you, and that is,
can you confirm whether Abitibi, Grand Falls demand,
which is shown as 26 megawatts ... that Abitibi, Grand Falls
demand for the purpose is 26 megawatts including four
megawatts of compensation energy?

MR. BUDGELL: Mr. Brickhill would be best to answer that
guestion. When | refer to the ... I'm referring to the one, the
2-CP study, the analysis. | cantak to the analysisthat was
completed leading up to the recommendation of 2-CP.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay. Well, let's ...

MR. BUDGELL: Not the... you're referring to the number
that's used in the cost of service, | believe, in regards to
Abitibi. That's what I'm drawing from the question you're
asking me.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Wédll, let's go to your
Schedule 5-A.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Inthe 2002 forecast under
the demand column 2 for Abitibi and Grand Falls, it shows
ademand of 26 megawatts?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, it does.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Does that include or
exclude the four megawatts of compensation demand, or do
you know?

MR. BUDGELL: I'll check.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay.

MR. BUDGELL: Give me a second. This is under the
revised forecast, right?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes.
MR. BUDGELL: It does.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay, and that four
megawatts of compensation demand, do you know if that
istaken out in the calculation of 1-CP and 2-CP?

MR. BUDGELL: | wouldn't know that.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: That would be Mr.
Brickhill?

MR. BUDGELL: That would be Mr. Brickhill, yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And similarly, do you
know if the 1.8 megawatts generated from Buchansisin the
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calculation for 1-CP and 2-CP?

MR. BUDGELL: Inthe cost of service?
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes.
MR. BUDGELL: | wouldn't know.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.. Okay, so again that
should be Mr. Brickhill?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes. The megawatts for Buchans, thisis
the demand met by ... the forecast indicates the demand ...
I'm a little confused in your question here. Just so | can
clarify it for the purposes of who got to follow-up. The
demand you see here would not include Buchans, what
Buchans meets. | wouldn't expect that it would. This
would be just Hydro's requirements.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay.
MR. BUDGELL: So Buchansisan Abitibi resource.
MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Uh hum.

MR. BUDGELL: That would have been netted off prior to
this forecast.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Wéll, thereason ... could
you ... | don't know how Ms. Greene will feel about this,
and | can wait for Mr. Brickhill, but | was wondering if
Hydro could provide an answer to the question as to
whether Abitibi's 1.8 megawatts generated from Buchansis
in the calculation for 1-CP and 2-CP? Because we think it
is and we want to know whether it is or it isn't, and if you
can't answer the question | would like to have an answer.

(12:00)

MS. GREENE, Q.C.: Well undertake to provide that
answer.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Thank you. With respect
to wheeling charges and the calculation of transmission
losses that goes into the wheeling charges, Abitibi has an
arrangement with Hydro whereby if it has surplus
generation from its Grand Falls mill which it can't utilizein
Grand Falls it pays Hydro for the right to ... | mean, it's
theoretical, to put that into the grid and effectively move it
across the transmission line to its mill at Stephenville,
correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And it pays Hydro arate
for theright to do this, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: And one of the things
that is taken into account in setting that rate is
transmission losses, correct?
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MR. BUDGELL: | don't know if the losses were takeniin ...
you mean the losses just on the energy moved?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Yes.

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah. | don't know whether it's built into
the rate or it's an adjustment on the sent and received.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay.

MR. BUDGELL.: | thought it was on the sent and received,
not on the rate.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Alright. | didn't explain
myself sufficiently clearly. Yes, when the energy leaves
Grand Fallsthere are losses on the transmission?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Asit theoreticaly goes
over the line, and | refer to theoretically because we don't
know if any of that actual energy ever reaches Stephenville.
We know that the amount of energy reaches Stephenville
but all we know is that there's an amount fed into the grid
a Grand Fals that is deemed to be delivered to
Stephenville less the transmission | osses, correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.. And al of the
transmission involved between Abitibi's mill in Grand Falls
and Abitibi's mill in Stephenville is 230 KV transmission,
agreed?

MR. BUDGELL: Weéll, there are other routes, and | refer
particularly to the Stoney Brook, from Grand Falls Stoney
Brook, through Springdale, through Deer Lake. Thereisa
138, but for the most part, there are two 230 KV lines and
one 138 KV circuit between the two.

MS.HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: But, andinwhatever route
that that energy would take to get from Grand Falls to
Stephenville, it does not involve any of theradial lines, you
would agree?

MR. BUDGELL: No. Yes, | would agree that it doesn't
involveradial lines.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: Okay, so, and when we're
talking about the radial lines we're talking about those lines
we've been talking about like the Great Northern Peninsula,
Burin, Baie Verte and Port aux Basgues, among others?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.: However, Hydro, in
calculating losses, subtracts from the amount of energy
delivered at Grand Falls, delivered by Grand Falls asit goes
over the system, the losses associated with not only the
transmission lines between Grand Falls and Stephenville,
but also the radial lines, correct?
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MR. BUDGELL: Yes. Weapply the average system losses
... average system transmission losses, I'm sorry.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS, Q.C.
guestions. Thank you, Mr. Budgell.

MR. BUDGELL: Thank you.

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Ms.
Henley Andrews. Thank you, very much, Mr. Budgell. I'll
as the Consumer Advocate, Mr. Browne, if he has any, as
Mr. Hutchings refers to them, short snappers, or would you
prefer to leaveit until 2:00, Mr. Browne?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Just one area I'll just finish up in
reference to the industrial. Can you go to CA-26, please,
Mr. Budgell? IN CA-26 the question is posed, "Why has
the price to industry trailed the price of electricity to NP,
about 89 percent for industry and 105 percent for NP and
130 percent for CPI?', and asked you to provide a chart.
Can you read that answer into the record, please?

Those are al my

MR. BUDGELL: "The main reason for the lower price to
industry in comparison to Newfoundland Power is the three
separate rate reductions industrial customers have
experienced in the base rates since 1991. Hydro's Board of
Directors approved rate decreases for industrial customers
in each of 1993 and 1994 totalling approximately eight
percent. In 1999 the PUB approved an 11 percent reduction
effective January the 1st, 2000, when the rural deficit was
eliminated from industrial rates. These rate decreases have
been partially offset by increases in the RSP over the
period.”

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Okay, sosince 1993, if welook at the
total we see, isit a 19 percent decrease for industrials over
that period, isthat what the evidence is?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, that'swhat | read here.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And if you look at the chart that
accompaniesit, CA-26 page 2 of 2, the chart dealing with
industrial rates and doing a comparison with NP, is that
chart an accurate reflection of what you just read?

MR. BUDGELL: | understand it to be.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Now, in referenceto industrials you
mentioned the RSP, the Rate Stabilization Plan. Was there
any monies owing in the plan proportionately by the
owners of the Hope Brook Gold Mine when the Hope
Brook Gold Mine closed?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't think ... I'm not an expert on the
RSP, but I don't think there were monies owed in the plan
by a particular industrial customer. If there was monies
owing it would have been by the industrial group. | don't
know ...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: But proportionately, according to the
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usage, there would be a certain amount owing, wouldn't it?

MR. BUDGELL: There could be. | don't know whether ...
I wouldn't know whether there is. It's not my area to track
those ...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Okay. Maybe through your counsel
there could be an undertaking to give us that information
to see when Hope Brook Gold Mine closed if there was an
amount owing in the Rate Stabilization Plan by the owners
of the Hope Brook Gold Mine. If there were an amount
owing who would it be absorbed by, Mr. Budgell?

MR. BUDGELL: It would be absorbed by the remaining
industrial customers.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Mr. Budgell, I'm going to stop right
there. That'salarge areal want to get into, Mr. Chairman,
| think that might be realistic. Thank you.

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr.
Browne. WE'll reconvene at 2:00.

(break)
(2:00 p.m.)

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Thank you, good
afternoon. Arethere any preliminary items, Counsel, before
we begin?

MR. KENNEDY': Chair, other than Hydro's regular update
on the undertakings, | don't believe so.

MS. GREENE, Q.C.: Thank you, first with respect to
yesterday there were no undertakings given yesterday, but
| do have one document that | would like to file. Itisa
response to an undertaking given to counsel for
Newfoundland Power on November 5th, and at that time we
were asked to provide documentation with respect to the
cost effectiveness of providing the emission monitoring in
the stacks at Holyrood, and | have a document to distribute
at thistime which is aresponse to that undertaking.

MR. KENNEDY: That's U-Hydro, No. 18.
U-HYDRO NO. 18 ENTERED

MS. GREENE, Q.C.: And that concludes my preliminary
points. Thank you.

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Ms.
Greene. | ask you to begin, Mr. Browne.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Thank you, Chairperson. Mr.
Budgell indicates you're a professional engineer. What
type engineer are you?

MR. BUDGELL: Electrical.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And your evidence indicates that
you're responsible for new generation, transmission and
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distribution facilities, isthat accurate?
MR. BUDGELL: Yes, the planning of those facilities.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Pursuant to your responsibility in
these areas are you also responsible for a so-called demand
side management initiatives.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, that comes under the economic
analysis group that commenced reporting to me in 1999.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: How would you describe Hydro, is
it primarily into the generation business and the
transmission business or the distribution business.

MR. BUDGELL: Our primary business is generation and
transmission.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And Newfoundland Power, what
would their primary business be?

MR. BUDGELL: Their primary businessis distribution.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Can you refer to the transcript of
November 5, 2001, page 11, line 69. November 5th, yes,
page 11, line 69.

MR. ORIELLY: | don't have November 5th.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: You don't have November 5?
MR. ORIELLY: | don't think so ... (inaudible).

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Well goto ahard copy, or maybe it
might not be necessary, I'll just read it. Our colleague, Ms.
Butler, asked you was there a cost benefit analysis done in
relation to the 138 kV line to service Burgeo, and Mr.
Budgell replied, | believe there was analysis done at that
particular time. | remember specifically doing an analysis
associated with an option of a small hydro plant near
Burgeo versus a transmission line. What was the small
hydro plant near Burgeo on which you did an analysis?

MR. BUDGELL: | wasreferring to some analysis that was
undertaken when | first came to system planning in the
early 1980's and the plant's name, | believe, was Dry Pond
Brook. It wason that brook. Thereis no plant actually, or
was never built coming out of that.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.. That was a hydro, hydrolysis
proposal that your were looking at?

MR. BUDGELL: No, we were just, there was, we were
looking at the feasibility of building a hydro plant versus
an isolated diesel, continued isolated diesel operation at
that time for Burgeo or an interconnection with the grid.
There was three options.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Did Hydro ever give consideration to
the development of hydroelectric on the Rose Blanche
Brook?
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MR. BUDGELL: Yes, only to the extent that it showed up
its potential, | believe, in the one of the feasibility, or pre-
feasibility analysis that Hydro had completed on the Island
for small hydro, but we didn't give any consideration,it
wasn't one of the better ones in our view, at that time, for
proceeding further with.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And can you go to CA-165? Why
did you say that Rose Blanche Brook wasn't one of the
better ones?

MR. BUDGELL: WEéll, there was, | remember the study at
the time indicated a number of projects, or 10, 20 or 25
projects as having potential for further development and |
believe we took a couple of those to the next stage, where
we went and did, like it was a desktop preliminary
engineering study at that time and we went to pre-
feasibility analysis with three or four of the projects, and
that wasn't one of the ones, so | suspect it wasn't in the
ones that were at the top of thelist.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Andwhy did you release your water
rights to Rose Blanche to Newfoundland Power in 1991?
Can you expand upon that.

MR. BUDGELL: WEell around about that time Hydro and
the government of the day were interested in providing
opportunity for a small scale hydro industry of sorts to
potentially or possibly develop on the Island. There was
quite a bit of an interest by some parties, private interests,
and I'm not particularly referring here to Newfoundland
Power, but other parties that were normally not part of the
electric industry at that time in hydro development, and the
general view, | believe, at that particular time was that
Hydro wasn't essentially building small hydro projects per
se and, and Hydro, Government and Hydro at that
particular time put a process in place whereby Hydro would
release projects for development, a franchise right, because
at that particular time Hydro's, you might remember, some
people may remember, we had a franchise right for the
development, but that didn't mean we had the right, it was
just the first right of refusal for development on the Island
and Hydro indicated at the time it was willing to release
those rights for projectsthat were under, | believe, it was 10
megawatts at that time, to private developers provided the
energy was sold to a utility and that was followed up by an
RFP in 1992, | believe, for small hydro projects and
concurrent about the same time, the government changed
the, | believe it was the PUB Act to permit small hydro
projects to be developed and to be sold to the public
utilities without having to go to the Public Utilities Board.
That's sort of the history that | remember from that time.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And from your perspective the Rose
Blanche Brook wasn't feasible, is that what you're telling
the Board?
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MR. BUDGELL: No, I'm not saying it wasn't feasible. I'm
just saying that we didn't have any plans in proceeding
with that particular development at that time.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: You didn't seeit asfeasible?

MR. BUDGELL: It wasn't a question of feasihility, the
project could have been very well, we didn't wish to
proceed with it. When you say feasible, you mean from a
technical perspective?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Yes.

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah, the project certainly, any project is
feasible, it's whether the economics on the project is
sufficient that we would have proceeded. It wasn't what |
would say the project that floated to the top amongst the
group that we had looked at and studied.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And it wasn't economic from your
perspective to proceed with it. Is that what you're telling
the Board?

MR. BUDGELL: Itwas, it was, it ranked lower in thelist of
projects than other projects that we took to the next stage.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: For instance?

MR. BUDGELL: Therewas aproject just, | remember one
in particular, | don't remember the name of the actua river,
there was one just adjoining to it, | believe it was called
Northwest Brook and | believe that's the watershed just
east of the Dry Pond Brook development, was looked at.
There was another project on the Great Northern Peninsula
on the Portland Creek, that areathat we looked at. | believe
it was four projects we took to the next stage and what had
happened was that our further analysis and preliminary
studies, the capital cost of the project as we studied it
more, | might use the term, were going in the wrong
direction ... they were increasing multiples which meant that
either the concept of our development was leading us to
conclude that the projects, the better projects were not
economic at that particular time from our view, with the
development costs that we would have incurred on a small
project. You have to envisage that Hydro coming into
building a project, a very small project brings with itself
certain add on costs to the Corporation itself in developing
the project that may not occur if it were a small private
developer.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Didyou read Newfoundland Power's
feagibility study in reference to the project, dated December
19, 1997, Rose Blanche Brook Development Feasibility
Review Update?

MR. BUDGELL: If that's the one that was submitted with
the Public Utilities Board approval of that project, | very
likely saw it.
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MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Yeah, | just want to make referenceto
that and we have some excerpts from that report. Do you
want to tag that counsel?

MR. KENNEDY:: It'snot part of an original, already filed
document, Mr. Browne, no?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Not to my knowledge.

MR. KENNEDY': I'll just wait for the Board secretary to get
the next number. It's CA No. 2?

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS: The previous document too
that wasfiledby Ms. Greene, was that marked? The
Holyrood continuous emission monitoring one.

MR. ANDREWS: Yes, U-Hydro No. 18 and that's the
document the Consumer Advocate just passed out, its to
be labelled CA No. 2.

EXHIBIT CA-2ENTERED

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: We have an executive summary here
in front of you describing the project prepared by
Newfoundland Power and the last sentence in the first
paragraph reads, from the ratepayers perspective the
project is one of the most economical, small scale
hydroelectric generation options currently available for
development on the Island. If Newfoundland Power saw it
that way, how was it you missed it?

MR. BUDGELL: Weéll, I only can say isthat Newfoundland
Power has, either had internal knowledge about the project
prior to selecting it or through the feasibility study found
out that the project was more attractive than the preliminary
studiesindicated.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.. But you told me previously
Newfoundland Power is primarily in the business of
distribution.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, and that's their primary business, but
they do have small scale hydro projects and experience.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And you told me primarily your
businessis generation and transmission.

MR. BUDGELL: And that'strue.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And as agenerator you couldn't see
the pluses around this project, the way Newfoundland
Power could?

MR. BUDGELL: Well, we looked at the projects. It was
amongst many projects that we were looking at that
particular time and we, through the analysis and again it
was analysis carried out on our behalf by a consultant,
where the analysis priorized projects on the basis of their
relative cost against each other. This project in those
analysis did not float to the top, or wasn't in the ones, the
better projects.
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(2:15p.m)

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Were you aware, as Newfoundland
Power says in that document, the third paragraph, the
project will displace 38,000 barrels of oil annually?

MR. BUDGELL: | guess that indicates to me that the
assumption made here is that on the margin we're always
burning some Holyrood oil so it's just an assumption that
if this project came on, Hydro and the, the requirements for
us were less that that would end up to be asavingsin oil to
Newfoundland Hydro. That's not 38,000 barrels of their ail.
That's all I'm saying.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: That's 38,000 barrels of your oil?
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So they used that as part of a
justification for the project, isthat fair comment?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, itisfair comment.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And now the power that's generated
there, arethey in fact selling that to you?

MR. BUDGELL: No.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: They're not?
MR. BUDGELL: No.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Haveyou lost the sale of any power
to Newfoundland Power as aresult of that project?

MR. BUDGELL.: Yes, that would have displaced salesfrom
Newfoundland Hydro to Newfoundland Power.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So if you had to do the project
yourself, is it fair comment that you would have had the
sales and you would have displaced 38,000 barrels
annually?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, but the same effect occurred in this
instance aswell. The only differenceis, the only difference
here is who developed it or to whose credit the project or
capability wasin. Likein other words, it wasn't part of our
production, it's part of their production in agiven year.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: When did you decide not to go with
Rose Blanche as a project, around what year was that? Can
you tell usthat?

MR.BUDGELL: | can't remember the exact year, but | know
most of the waivers, and what we provided at that time was
waivers to individuals, most of that activity had finished
before the RFP started, so I'm thinking that it had to be 1992
or earlier.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: When did you decide to go into the
wood chip business in Roddickton?

MR. BUDGELL: That wasin the 1980's.
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MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Canyou ball park it alittle bit better
than that?

MR. BUDGELL: 1 think the project may have come in
servicein 1987, around that timeframe.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And what was the nature of that
project?

MR. BUDGELL: That project was a project that was built
with some federal and provincia funding and the rationale
for the project was to displace generation capacity and
energy on the isolated system and we were creating, at that
time ... I'll just step back a second, before that project was
completed there were three separate systems up on the
Great Northern Peninsula that were combined together to
make one and those were the St. Anthony system, the
Main Brook system, and the Roddickton system. We had
three separate plants and these operated autonomously
from each other, and what that project did, it consisted of
the wood chip plant and a transmission line connecting
those three systems together and enabled us to shut down
the Main Brook plant and we operated the system from that
time after until the system was interconnected based on a
wood chip operation thermal production at Roddickton and
diesel in St. Anthony, met the load requirements of that
diesel system, isolated system.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And what was the cost of the,
building the wood chip facility in Roddickton?

MR. BUDGELL: It was, | remember it was it was
approximately $25,000,000.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Andwhereisthat facility today?

MR. BUDGELL: It's till at Roddickton but its been
mothballed and is in the decommissioning process by
Hydro.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: It wasafailure?
MR. BUDGELL: No, | wouldn't agree with that.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Maybe you can tell us why it's not
there operating today then.

MR. BUDGELL: It, once we interconnected the, as an
isolated plant, its fuel costs was cheaper than oil, but once
we interconnected to the system its only role was as a
stand-by plant on the system, and as a stand-by plant it
just couldn't perform, or fill, we thought first at least we had
analyzed it from the perspective of whether it can fill that
capacity, but we realized that we couldn't get that plant
started in, until about two days, and by the time two days
would pass, most of the events that you would require that
plant to be up and running for would have been aready
passed and solved. Plus we'd have to keep staff, or
adequate staff there to enable us to run that, so we thought
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it was a better decision, subsequent to the interconnection,
to discontinue operations so we applied to the Board, |
believe, inthefall of 1999, and in 2000 we had permission to
discontinue.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So how long was it operating?

MR. BUDGELL: It operated from, I'm using a date, |
remember it was around from the late '80's until the
interconnection in, of the system or shortly thereafter, in
1997, around that timeframe.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So thelate eighties, so what are we
talking about six years or seven years?

MR. BUDGELL: It's about ten years it operated. 1'm just
trying to think of the, | said '87 it came in service, if that's
right its '87 to '97 roughly that, but | don't know whether '87
isthe proper date.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Andwasit efficient?

MR. BUDGELL: Thefud, from aviable cost perspective it
was cheaper than diesel. It wouldn't be as efficient as a
large thermal plant, vis-a-vis, the Holyrood or that type of
plant.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So what are you telling the Board
now, you spent $25,000,000 between 1987 to 1997, and |
grant you those numbers, for a wood chip facility in
Roddickton and it's no longer in operation.

MR. BUDGELL: That'sright and no costs are in the cost of
service for customers since 1999.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And at the same time, Newfoundland
Power, in 1991 you relinquish your rights to what
Newfoundland Power describesin their feasibility study as
one of the most economical small scale hydroelectric
generation operations currently available for development
on the Island, in Rose Blanche.

MR. BUDGELL: I'm sorry, | didn't catch that. What was
the question?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: You abandoned that in 1991, that
possibility of developing Rose Blanche.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, I've aready indicated that we did.
We decided to waive the rights to that and a humber of
other sites.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Can you see from a ratepayers
perspective why that might be troubling, to spend
$25,000,000 in a failed operation and didn't take on what
looks to be a viable operation, according to Newfoundland
Power?

MR. BUDGELL: | think there are two, you're talking about
two different timeframes, number one.
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MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Yes, within afew year of each other,
isn'tit.

MR. BUDGELL: WEell, no, the Rose Blanche project came
in service, | believe around 1998, ten years after the
Roddickton, more than that after the Roddickton plant was
built, but the shutdown of the Roddickton unit was about
the same time as the, or this project was starting up.
They're only, from a time perspective, the only thing that
they have in common is one is shutting down and the other
is starting up. The decision framework are ten years apart,
or longer.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Isit fair to suggest to the Board that
a project that had a ten year life, 1987 to 1997, the wood
chip plant at Roddickton at the cost of $25,000,000, is a
prudent expenditure?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, | believeit wasaprudent expenditure
at that particular time based on the information that it was
committed on. You have to remember, you may not
remember, you'd have to realize that the project when it was
committed was on an isolated system, in anticipation that
this system would stay isolated. If it was known that the
project was not going to stay isolated, then | would say in
hindsight that that project would never have been built.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: It'sal interconnected now though,
up thereisit?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, certainly.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: It's all part of the interconnected
system.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes,itis. There'sno isolated part now.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And how much did it cost to
interconnect the system on the Great Northern Peninsula?

MR. BUDGELL: Roughly around $25,000,000, which was
the net number of the infrastructure grant from the
government. It think it was $26,000,000, $32 million and $26
million, | believe are the numbers, inthat area. $32 million,
for total with the $5,000,000 off. It'sin one of these ...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So after spending $25,000,000 on the
wood chip plant in Roddickton, you spent another
$25,000,000 to interconnect up there.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Isthat, why wouldn't you spend the
$25,000,000 in the first instance to interconnect and forego
the wood chip plant in Roddickton?

MR. BUDGELL: Wecouldn't. It wasalot more cost at that
time. The interconnection was a lot more cost, the GNP
network in the 1980's was not as far up the Peninsula.
What's happened on the Peninsula, the interconnection of
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St. Anthony/Roddickton occurred because of the capital
cost as the interconnection moved up the Peninsula. Over
time the Peninsula, the interconnection in St
Anthony/Roddickton would have gotten somewhat
cheaper because we were moving the system up, like at one
time, the first time we moved up the Peninsula the line only
went to Hawkes Bay and then it was extended further to
Flowers Cove area and then they reinforced those sections.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Soyou'reextending it incrementally?

MR. BUDGELL: Exactly, and so that was occurring over
time. So over time the, eventually the interconnection
costs got to a stage where we were able to justify doing the
project. The conversation which | had this morning with
Ms. Henley Andrews was in reference to a study, at that
particular time it was getting very margina ... if you read
that particular study, in 1993 and without the infrastructure
money from the government, Hydro at that time were not
willing to move ahead with that particular project. It was
still economic, it looked economic ...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: The $5,000,000 you got from the
infrastructure project?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, that'sright. That, we took advantage
of that opportunity. We thought that that was worth doing
at that time. We didn't think that that opportunity would
come by our way too often.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And the incrementsthat you put on
the system, the total value of those, was that $25,000,000
worth of increments you put there?

MR. BUDGELL: Which increments, you mean before this?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Yesah, the...
MR. BUDGELL: Oh, | don't know.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: The Roddickton money we're talking
about is $25,000,000 here.

MR. BUDGELL: The Roddickton money was in that order,
yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Soif you had $50,000,000, say you
had $25 million and then the Roddickton $25 million, would
it have cost in 1987, $50,000,000 to interconnect the
Northern Peninsula?

MR. BUDGELL: | remember a study, and | don't know
which timeframe the analysis was, but | remember a cost
estimate done at some stage, and it might have been in
1984, of anumber in the vicinity of $60,000,000 at that time
to interconnect, the St. Anthony/Roddickton system or the
full GNP.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And isn't that in fact what it cost
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you, the $25,000,000 plus another $35,000,000 according to
you now, to do the incremental work?

MR. BUDGELL: Not to interconnect it. It, | don't know
what if you add up to is the, well, the $25,000,00 and
whatever costs were incurred since then on the incremental
part. The St. Anthony/Roddickton portion was $25 million,
I don't know what the prior parts were.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Arethere cost analyses availableto
show what the increments you did on the Northern
Peninsula, how you were moving toward interconnection
in a comparative timeframe to when you were developing
Roddickton?

MR. BUDGELL: There was a study done on the, what do
you mean ... moving on the transmission system?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Yes, what did it cost you, you know,
for the various increments to move to the point where you
spent the $25,000,000 to interconnect up there?

MR. BUDGELL: There's, there should be analysis available
on that.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Can you show us the cost, can you
show us the cost breakdown?

MR. BUDGELL: I, | don't have those numbers with me.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: | don't expect you do. Can you
undertake to get your counsel to show us.

MR. BUDGELL: | can try to get those numbers, yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: If they are available. Canyou move
to CA-171 please?

MR. BUDGELL: Can you, just to clarify, from what
timeframe Mr. Browne do you want, like what, from what
timeframe?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Well you told us now just in your
evidence that you couldn't interconnect the $25,000,000
worth of interconnection I'll refer to it as, that ended in
1996, you'd have to spend up to, you told us, $60,000,000
if you did it from a starting point in 1987.

MR. BUDGELL: Somewhere back in the '80's, yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Yeah, I'm wondering where that
$35,000,000 rests, piece by piece.

MR. BUDGELL: Okay. | think | have an understanding of
what you're looking for.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And at the sametime, Roddickton is
now mothballed is my understanding, is that correct?

MR. BUDGELL: That's correct.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.:
mothballed?

If it had any value, would it be

EXECUTECH Inc. - 579-4451

Page 27



10
11
12
13
14

15

16
17

18
19

20

21
22
23

24
25

26

27
28
29

30

31
32
33

34
35

36
37

38

39
40
a1
42
43

November 8, 2001

P.U.B. Hearing - Newfoundland & L abrador Hydro - Rate Hearing

MR. BUDGELL: Weéll, it's being sold off.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Butnot as...
MR. BUDGELL: Not asaplant.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Not as a plant, so doesn't that say
something?

MR. BUDGELL: Well it just saysfrom value of the system
torunit. Yes, it says something.

(2:30 p.m.)

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Okay, moveto CA-171 please? That
refers to a joint study with Newfoundland Power and
Newfoundland Hydro on the potential for mini hydro in
rural isolated systems. You might need a hard copy for
that. I'm not certain if it's there or not, Terry. Are you
familiar with thisjoint utility study, Mr. Budgell?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.
familiarity?

MR. BUDGELL: It was done during the timeframe when |
was Director of System Planning, in my current position.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And how did the study come about?

MR. BUDGELL: Well fromwhat | remember it wasa Board
request of Newfoundland Power and Hydro at a
Newfoundland Power hearing.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: | believe it was a 1996 hearing, was
it not?

MR. BUDGELL: | believe you'reright.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And around that time, if memory
serves me correctly, the Board heard from Mr. Gordon
Rodgers, do you know that name?

MR. BUDGELL.: | think I remember the gentleman.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: He was a proponent of small
developments on various small brooks, amongst other
things.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, | had, | believe I've had several
telephone conversations with the gentleman.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Did you ever see his presentation?
| think he gave a presentation to the Board in 1996.

MR. BUDGELL: | don't recal it right now.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And this study came about as a
Board recommendation based upon, | think, Mr. Rodgers
information before the Board and information by the
Newfoundland and Labrador Federation of Municipalities.
How was the study conducted?

And how did you gain that
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MR. BUDGELL: Therewas, there was discussion, | think,
between ourselves and Newfoundland Power and there
was one individual from my department, one of my
department's generation area, and an individual from
Newfoundland Power that coordinated the anaysis and
studies using support of other people from both
organizations.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Andhow wasit conducted? Did you
meet on aregular basis?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, thoseindividuas...
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: What format did you use?

MR. BUDGELL: Theseindividuals that did the study met
fairly regularly and apportioned out the respective aspects
of the work because quite a hit of the analysis here called
upon quite a bit of information from Hydro on its isolated
systems and so obviously we had to pull together this
information ...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Soyoudidit internally between the
two utilities, between Newfoundland Power and
Newfoundland Hydro?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Did you seek any outside advicein
reference to it? Did you seek the input of the
Newfoundland and Labrador Federation of Municipalities,
for instance?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't remember if, they may have been
present to some of the meetings in regards to this. | don't
remember whether there was ...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Didyou meet with Mr. Rodgers?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't remember that name, but | thought
there was an executive somebody, it was a lady with the
Federation of Municipalities at the time and their name
escapes me, that had some interest in this project.

MR. ALTEEN: Dr. Patricia Hemstead, maybe.
MR. BUDGELL.: Hah, there you go.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And shewasn't an engineer was she,
Ms. Hemstead?

MR. BUDGELL: No, | don't know what her background
was but | know she was with the development part of the
Federation.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And the profilesfor studies, | think,
arelisted on page 9. The customer profiles for study areas.
Can you moveto that?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And Table 2.2, that lists off al the
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customers, the potential customers with which your
dealing, Petits, Lapoile, Grey River, Francois, MacCallum,
Recontre East and Harbour Deep. Are these al the areas
that were studied?

MR. BUDGELL: | believe so.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And al these areas, in whose
jurisdiction are they, are they in Newfoundland Power's or
Newfoundland Hydro's?

MR. BUDGELL: They'redl in Newfoundland Hydro's.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: What did Newfoundland Power have
to bring to the table?

MR. BUDGELL: Newfoundland Power were the one, it was
their hearing and they were the ones that were directed to
dothis. It wasmy preferenceif it was Hydro directed to do
it, but the Board, in its wisdom at the day, given that
hearing and the Federation's interest, I'm assuming asked
both utilities.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Now if the Newfoundland and
Labrador Federation had asked that, did you study any
possibilities up in Labrador at the time?

MR. BUDGELL: Not at this, not at that particular time.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Why wasthat?

MR. BUDGELL: Because the, the direction given at that
particular time was in respect of the Island rural isolated
systems. There was a specific direction from what | recall.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And what was the outcome of this
particular study?

MR. BUDGELL: Therewere no sitesthat |ooked economic.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: There's no sites looked economic to
Hydro or to Newfoundland Power, is that what your telling
us?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: But from an outsider's perspectiveis
it possible that a site might have looked economic to athird
party, isthat possible?

MR. BUDGELL: Thatis, could be possible and it could be
possible at any time.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Because we just saw the example of
Rose Blanche, didn't we? It didn't look any great shakesto
you, but Newfoundland Power said....

MR. BUDGELL: Thatisaways...
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Aswe quoted previously.

MR. BUDGELL: That's always the issue associated when
you do these type of studies, that you won't on a small
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scale hydro project, you will not, you will not get a, the
ultimate appreciation of what the costs are until you
actualy get into the field and complete, what we call, afull
fledged final feasibility study. It's not until that stage you
really finalize the cost of the project.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And | gather thisis how your study
was referred to as a "desktop study”, | believe that's the ...

MR. BUDGELL: 1 think that's accurate, yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And a desktop study means you
don't leave your office, thisis all done out of your offices,
isthat it?

MR. BUDGELL.: It's done from mapping, your right.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So you never went to Petits, or
Lapoile, or Grey River, or Francois, or MacCalum, or any of
these places ...

MR. BUDGELL: No.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: ... totake alook?

MR. BUDGELL: This is the preliminary level that you
would do these types of studies.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Is there an inherent danger in
yourself and Power doing these particular studies, do you
have any vested interest in seeing that perhaps a third
party might want to get into the business?

MR. BUDGELL: Well we...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: You might want to keep your elbows
out there a bit.

MR. BUDGELL: We've, no not really, because we've since
1987 had, especidly intherural areas, had a policy whereby
wewould pay our avoided cost for diesel, | think the figure
was 90 percent of our avoided diesel cost, in any of the
diesel systems for alternate energy projects, and our
history to date in regards to that is one project.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Butisn'tit true that two communities
passed the first phase of this study?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, this study had different, I'll call it
different levels of sieves of doing the analysis.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And what two communities passes
the first phase?

MR. BUDGELL: Grey River and Francois.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And even after they passed the first
phase, did you bother, or your engineers, to go to Grey
River and Francois and get afirst hand look?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't know myself whether anybody
visited those particular sites or did not.
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MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: There's no indication of it in the
study, isthere?

MR. BUDGELL: No. | don't recall whether reading that in
the study as well.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So after the secondary screening
these two communities were screened out as well?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.. And your conclusions and
recommendations on page 28, page 28 you make, just
before the numeral one there, can you read that out to us,
the severa factors.

MR. BUDGELL: Starting with the first paragraph?
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Yeah, there are several factors.

MR. BUDGELL: You want me to start there. There are
severa factors that can improve the prospects for mini
hydro developments including an increase in fuel cost.
This study was carried out using fuel forecast for the next
30 years. Significant increasein fuel price escalation would
enhance the value of fuel savings, thereby improving the
competitiveness of mini hydro vis-a-vis diesel operations.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Now it saysthat these are factors can
improve the prospects, an increase in fuel cost. Have you
looked at that since? Have you looked at any these
projects since, given the price of fuel?

MR. BUDGELL: No, we haven't.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Why would that be?

MR. BUDGELL: Becausg, | don't think it would materially
change the results of this particular study, unless fuel went
astronomically high. | don't think fuel pricestoday are that
dramatically different to changethe ...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Woas there any consideration of
giving over these projects to the municipalities, because it
was the Federation of Municipalities that asked you to
undertake the study, of giving it over to the municipalities
and see if they could come up with a proponent who
wishes, who wished to develop it?

MR. BUDGELL: This report, and the anaysis, and the
studies on the sites, the public ownsit. Newfoundland and
Labrador Hydro, or, nor Newfoundland Power has any
rights to these particular sites. Anybody in the public can
pick this up, develop that particular site, approach us and
we'd negotiate arate.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Did you send the study to any of
those communities to, the communities listed?

MR. BUDGELL: I'm not awarethat it was, but I'm assuming
it was provided to the Board and | would think that since
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there was Federation involvement that they would have a
copy of the report as well.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Solet megetitright now. We had a
hearing in 1996, the Newfoundland and Labrador
Federation of Municipalities made a presentation through
Mr. Gordon Rodgers at that hearing ... you can't give any
evidence that Mr. Rodgers was consulted in reference to
the study that was undertaken?

MR. BUDGELL: I, | don't recall personally.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: You don't know if he was or if he
wasn't. Can you, do you have minutes or do you have
anything like that to check to see if he was?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't know if there was anything in
minutes. | doubt very much.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And Newfoundland Power's hearing
and they were a party, even though none of these areas
were into Newfoundland Power's jurisdiction, it's all your
jurisdiction ...

MR. BUDGELL: That's correct.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Does Hydro have a, a bias against
developing smaller, smaller rivers, smaller brooks such as
these? Is there an inherent bias among you engineers up
there?

MR. BUDGELL: No, but thereisobviougly ...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Do you like, do you like the big, do
you like the big things Granite Lake and the Lower
Churchill and Muskrat Falls, and Gull Island. That's your
preference, isn't it?

MR. BUDGELL: No, | don't think so. Thereisanissuein
regards, when you get to small projects there's economies
of scale and the level of engineering that you can put to
these particular projects is limited before the projects
become uneconomic. You can over engineer the project
essentially, and there might be atendency on our part to do
that. | don't know, but, but we tend to ... when we build a
project, we build a project with along term view in mind
that the project is going to be around, and it's going to be
stable and that we're not going to have any problems for a
long time. If the private developer built a project it might
cut afew corners here and there that we mightn't do. There
might be a few handrails to protect employees in a few
locations that we might put up that a private guy wouldn't
do. | don't know, there may be, our people who work at a
sitewould like to have bathrooms on the site, | don't know,
private may not want to that have for people. There's a
whole bunch of issues that could end up when we do
projects they cost a little bit more, but we do have
experience with small scale hydro project of thistype.
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(2:45p.m)

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Whenwasthelast small scale project
that Hydro developed in this Province?

MR. BUDGELL: Wéll, when | say small scalein the scale
here would be the Roddickton project. I'm leaving Paradise
River out of that. Paradise River ...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Thewood chip?

MR. BUDGELL: No, hydro project. No, the Roddickton
small hydro project.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Okay. What year was that?
MR. BUDGELL: That was built in the "78 to '80 period.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: 1978 to '80? So you've had no
experience with small scale projects since that time?

MR. BUDGELL: Other than Paradise River.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: What year was that?

MR. BUDGELL: Paradise River would've been built about
the 1990 time period.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So you'd have one experience with a
small scale since 1978?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And thus my question is there any
kind a bias that you have there against these smaller
projects as opposed to the larger one?

MR. BUDGELL: No, no asit stands...
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Isthere an institutional bias there?
MR. BUDGELL: No, | don't think so. | don't think so.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Hasit been apossibility. | saw you
smiling afew times when | asked.

MR. BUDGELL: That might be just my, might be dinner
(laughter). It aso might be the spot I'm sitting in
(laughter).

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Would it be prudent now given the
changes in fuel costs that we've seen and given the fact
that you have an application before this Board which says
that in December 2002 the Rate Stabilization Plan is to
move, according to your estimates, to $100 million.
Wouldn't it be prudent to go back and examine these
projects again or have someone independent look at these
projectsto seeif there's any value in devel oping these?

MR. BUDGELL: | would seriously doubt it because even
the level of study that was done here, | thought give more
benefit of doubt to the small hydro projects than | thought
the projects merited, and the reason | say that isthat for the
most part, now these are Island ones, Island projects, and
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for the most part some of these communities are, I'll use the
word stagnant in a sense, there's not a lot of growth on the
Island in some of these communities, and the problem that
you have with asmall hydro project, you haveto build it as
cheap as possible, with very limited storage. Y ou can't take
the diesel plant out of there because the hydro project
doesn't provide firm energy, or firm capacity to you, so
youre essentially caught with the operation and
maintenance cost of two facilities if they're built and the
hydro project, if you don't maximize the use of the energy
and the time it's available, in other words if it's spilled, it's
gone forever, and again that's part of the projection here
and the level of detail that these studies went into. | don't
think they went into the final level of detail. If these
studies were done, and | believe there were still some costs
and someissuesin regardsto O & M costs associated with
the projects that weren't incorporated in these studies. So,
these studies were aimed at trying to get a quick fix on what
the relative economics of these projects are, and thisis not
too different than analysis that has been carried out before,
because this is not the first time this was done. The first
small scale hydro study of this sort was done in 1978 and
there was another one done in 1987 and here's one done
again in 1997. So we've been around the horn three times
on this now and there's till, one project got, no I'm sorry,
Il come back, two projects got built. The Roddickton
project got built and the only reason it got built was
because it had significant federal funding. As a matter of
fact, | think the federal government provided pretty well
most of the funding for the project.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: When you say the Roddickton
project now, isthat the wood chip one?

MR. BUDGELL: The Roddickton mini hydro project.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: There's been a few things up in
Roddickton, so you should be careful.

MR. BUDGELL: Y eah, somepeoplein the officerefer tothe
R word, but | will try to be careful. The Roddickton mini
hydro project. The other project that came out of previous
studies was the White Rock Falls project, which was a
project in Mary's Harbour, a developer completed it, again
with significant federa money and had the advantage of
funds that were invested for a water supply, because most
of the development costs on theriver, or the stream on that
location, was done on behest of a water supply for the
community, so they piggybacked the small hydro onto that
development and that project is not what | would call to be
very economic as well.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: When you examine the Rose Blanche
project, and determined whether that should be viable, was
that done by way of a desktop study as well?

MR. BUDGELL: Thereferencethat | wasreferring to would
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have been a, I'm pretty sure would have been a desktop
study. It would have been based on mapping. This was
the one done by a consultant for us on our behalf.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: It's not a matter of someone going
into the field and taking afirst hand look.

MR. BUDGELL: No, thefield work normally, there's three
levels in an engineering feasibility study associated with
hydro projects, there's three levels of studies. Thereis a,
there's a preliminary or desktop study we refer to, there's a
pre-feasibility study and then there's a feasibility study.
Small scale hydro's really can't stand the cost of three of
that, not that engineers now mind you make alot of money,
but ait's just a, just an added expense on this little small
project.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Wewon' get into that yet, we might
be coming there (laughter).

MS. GREENE, Q.C.
compared to lawyers.

MR. BUDGELL: No, heaven forbid.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Do you wantto take abreak for afew
moments and Mr. Chairman, I'll move into anew area.

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Sure, well be back in
15 minutes. Thanks.

| thought you were going to say

(break)
(3:15p.m)

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Thank you, can | ask
you to continue, Mr. Browne, please?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Thank you, Chairperson. Mr.
Budgell, are you familiar with the coordination steering
committee meetings convened between Newfoundland
Power and Newfoundland Hydro?

MR. BUDGELL: No.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Y ou have nothing to do with those?
MR. BUDGELL: | wasn'tinvolved at all.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Did you have occasion to read any
of the minutesin reference to them?

MR. BUDGELL: Only the onesthat | sat in the back of the
room that you read the other day.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Soyou haven't even looked at them?

MR. BUDGELL.: | havejust glanced at some of them, but
not, | haven't read through the volumes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Ms. Gillian Butler, when she was
examining you the other day, examined you in reference to
the VHF mobile radio system at some length, as the
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transcript will verify, and there is arevised budget that was
entered in the capital projects, over $50,000, B-66 | think it's
referred to now, and it refersto the replacement of the VHF
mobileradio system for $3 million, and $5,600,000. Areyou
familiar with that?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Okay, and it therefore comes as a
surprise to you maybe that there was a working group,
number ten ...

MR. BUDGELL: Oh, I'm awaretherewasagroup. I'm just
saying | was not involved.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: You weren't involved but you were
aware there was a group.

MR. BUDGELL: | was aware that there was a working
group onit.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Wéll, did you read their report?

MR. BUDGELL: No, | haven't but | spoke to the director of
that section.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.. Okay, you spoke to someone and
you didn't read the report. Maybe we should go to working
group number ten. | think you're going to need your hard
copy for this, CA-201. Have you located that, Mr.
Budgell?

MR. BUDGELL: | havethe RFI. | don't ... isthere a page
number | should refer to?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Page 30, working group number ten.
Now let me get this straight again. Y ou're responsible for
the VHF mobile radio system?

MR. BUDGELL: I'm responsible for responding to the
question in this hearing for the generation and IS & T
groups.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Andthat's part of that, the VHF radio
system.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And you didn't know there was a
working group dealing with that particular system, is that
what you're telling the Board?

MR. BUDGELL: The system planning department does not
have responsibility for the VHF system.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Now, who's got responsibility for
that?

MR. BUDGELL:
telecontrol section.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And who would that be?

That's the information systems and
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MR. BUDGELL: Eric Downton.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Ishegoing to testify?
MR. BUDGELL: No, I'm testifying on his behalf.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Okay, so you're testifying on behalf
of the VHF mobile radio system in that case, | guess that's
correct?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Okay, working group number ten, on
page 30 of this joint committee between Newfoundland
Power and Newfoundland Hydro ... just before we begin, a
VHF mobile radio system, what does VHF stand for, can
you put that on the record?

MR. BUDGELL: Very high frequency.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And does Newfoundland Power
have a VHF mobile radio system as well?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, they do.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And the scope, can you read that
into the record?

MR. BUDGELL: Review the needs and practices with
respect to the coordination activities relating to the
operation and extension of the VHF mobile radio system for
both utilities with a view to enhance customer service and
reduce operating costs.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Andif youlook at the assignment to
establish a Task Force, two, numera two, the letter (a),
what does that say?

MR. BUDGELL: Investigate possible VHF mobile radio
system engineering alternatives for a system to service
both utilities.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And (b)?
MR. BUDGELL: Cost of various alternatives.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And(c)?

MR. BUDGELL: Do an andysis of cost savings
throughout a jointly owned or shared VHF mobile radio
system.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And the summary, can you put the
summary into the record?

MR. BUDGELL: After reviewing the technical aspects of
the two VHF mobile radio systems, the VHF working group
confirmed that both utility system control centre operators
could talk with employees of the other utilities designated
to do switching for them. The only alternative for asingle
VHF mobile system that is capable of serving the
requirements of both utilities would be a new infrastructure.
Also, because of the technical differences between the two
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systems, there was limited opportunity to pursue the cost
savings.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C. And the working group's
recommendation, 10.47, what did the group recommend?

MR. BUDGELL: Prior to one utility preparing to replace the
VHF mobile radio system, the other utility will be contacted.
It will then be determined if the operational requirements of
both utilities can be met with a single system, and if the
operating costs for such a system are acceptable to both.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Now, did you do that?
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Who did you contact?

MR. BUDGELL: | understand the people from our
telecontrol group contacted the people from the telecontrol
group of Newfoundland Power.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Now there's people and people, and
you understand, can we get alittle bit more specific? Was
there written correspondence in reference to this?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't know. 1 know that the only
indications that | believe, that have been provided to me,
was that in February of this year Newfoundland Hydro met
with Newfoundland Power and provided them with an
alternative, or had discussions with them on a new system,
and provided an alternative to them where they can avail of
the opportunity of our system.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C..
discussions?

MR. BUDGELL: No, | did not.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And yet you're responsible for this
budget?

MR. BUDGELL: I'm responsible for, at this hearing,
responding to questions of the parties, and if | can't
answer, to get the response for the parties.

MR.BROWNE, Q.C.: Sothisbudgetary item, this$8 million
over the two year period, $8,600,000, this is within your
jurisdiction or isit not?

MR. BUDGELL: It'snotin my jurisdiction.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: But you're just doing a favour for
someone else, isthat it?

Did you take part in those

MR. BUDGELL: No, I'm not so much doing afavour, I'm
reporting on behalf ... somebody, | guess, one of the
individuals of Hydro had to stand to the budget in regards
to this hearing.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Now thisisavery significant item,
$8,600,000, Mr. Budgell, would you admit to that?
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MR. BUDGELL: Yes,itis.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And we have a working group
recommendation that one utility was going to contact the
other utility to see if a single system was acceptable to
both, but you're saying it's your understanding that there
were meetings.

MR. BUDGELL: That was done.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.. Is there correspondence, an
exchange of correspondence in reference to these
meetings?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't know whether there was actual
written correspondence or not, 1'd have to check that.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Can you undertake through your
counsel to provide al exchanges of correspondence
between Newfoundland Power and Newfoundland Hydro
in reference to this particular item?

MR. BUDGELL: | can.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Can we get it before you leave the
stand?

MR. BUDGELL: | hope so.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: | want you to refer for amoment to
CA-190, the meetings in reference to this particular item,
and once again, | think we're going to need hard copies
here, and | wish to go to meeting number 25 of the joint
coordinating steering committee meetings, CA-190, held on
Thursday, December 3, 1998. Newfoundland Power's J.J.
Murphy room.

MR. BUDGELL: Can | have that meeting number again
please?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Meeting number 25, Thursday,
December 3, 1998, from 8:30 am. to 12:00 noon, in
Newfoundland Power's J.J. Murphy room.

MR. BUDGELL: | havethat.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And under item two, overview of
progress, the first item says, "John vented his frustration
regarding the lack of progress by all parties in this
endeavour. To significantly reduce costs requires tough
decisions by all". That's not what | was going to ask you,
| just couldn't resist reading that again. What I'm going to
ask you is the bullet, the second bullet there, beginning
with, "John cited examples'. Can you read that out for us
please?

MR. BUDGELL: John cited examples where cooperation
agreed to did not seem to exist and a significant
philosophical difference between the organization. An
examplewas in the telecommunications area where despite
the agreement, NP learned of Hydro's plans to build a major
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VHF radio network through an NLH filing with the PUB.
Philosophically NP views the telecommunications
companies as the experts in their field, while Hydro seems
to take the position that they can do the job better than the
telecommuni cations companies.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Haveyou ever seen that before?

MR. BUDGELL: 1 believe | heard you have Mr. Reeves
read that out.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Soyou are familiar with it.
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Did you go and check on it and see
what the reference was?

MR. BUDGELL: Thereferenceis John Evans views.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: You'e here before the Board looking
for $8,600,000 for a VHF radio system when the Vice-
President of Newfoundland Power states through these
minutes, Newfoundland Power views the communications
companies as the expertsin their field, while Hydro seems
to take the position they can do the job better than the
telecommunications companies. Do you have any
comment on that?

MR. BUDGELL: | think that's John Evans personal view in
the minutes, and he'swelcome to hisview. | don't think it's
Hydro's view.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: | refer you to item one, it says the
minutes were accepted as distributed.

MR. BUDGELL: [I'm assuming that's the minutes of the
previous meeting.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And you don't think these minutes
were accepted?

MR. BUDGELL.: | don't know but | would personally have
trouble with that statement.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Go to meeting number 26 for a
moment, Mr. Budgell.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Meeting number 26 was held 1:30
p.m. on January 26th, 1999, at Hydro Placein St. John's, and
the attendees were Mr. Evans, Mr. O'Rielly, Mr. Reeves and
Mr. Clarke. Item one, meeting number 25, what does it
state?

MR. BUDGELL: The minutes were accepted as distributed.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And under the first bullet there in
item two, there's an arrow, VHF coordination, can you read
that into the record for us?

MR. BUDGELL: I'm sorry, give me the reference again
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please?
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: VHF coordination.

MR. BUDGELL: VHF coordination, Hydro does plan to
replace its VHF radio, however, not until 2003/2004. Hydro
presented a communication budget to the Public Utilities
Board as part of its 1999 capital plan. The work associated
with 1999 relates only to the powerline carriers which is
used for protection on the transmission line. Dave pointed
out that Newfoundland Tel is still evaluating the possibility
of across the island VHF link which could be used by a
number of subscribers. Hydro will be exploring this as one
of its options prior to the year 2003, aong with talking to
Newfoundland Power about the possibility of coordination.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Isthat in fact till true? Does Hydro
plan to replace your VHF radio in 2003/2004?

MR. BUDGELL: It's 2002/2003 currently.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And why did you move it down a
year?

MR. BUDGELL: This is in reference to the, this is in
reference to, | guess, the statement, the 1997
communications plan which was filed with the Board, |
don't remember it having the VHF in that timeframe
personaly, but | can't speak for what Dave Reeves was
indicating to Newfoundland Power at that particular time,
but | have to accept that it was looking at options for doing
the VHF radio system prior to the year 2003, and that's what
was on the go ... Hydro was having active discussions with
Aliant in the hopes that Aliant would build a system and
would sign up parties on the island to use that particular
system, and Hydro wouldn't have to build one by itself,
and one of those parties, or severa of, or two of those
parties would be Newfoundland Power and Newfoundland
and Labrador Hydro.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And the other two were the RCMP
and the Royal Newfoundland Constabulary, is that true?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, the Coast Guard, and | believe there
was...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And the Coast Guard.

MR. BUDGELL: The Coast Guard and Works Services and
Transportation, which is one of the groups that share our
current system.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C. So Works Services and
Transportation shares your system?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, we share costs with them on our
system, they pay usto use our system.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So of the $8 million, the $8,600,000,
youre seeking from the Board, are they making a
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contribution towards that?
(2:30 p.m.)

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, they will be sharing in the cost. We
have an intent from them that they will, or areinterested in
going in on that system with us.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Goinginonit, arethey goinginon
at five percent, 10 percent, 50 percent?

MR. BUDGELL: | think their use on the system, based on
the current system, isin the range of 40 to 50 percent.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So they're going to give you $4
million?

MR. BUDGELL.: | don't know that the arrangements have
progressed to the extent where the, whether there will be a
capital infusion into the project or whether we will complete
the project and then they would pay us on a month-by-
month basis.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So isn't this something the Board
should know before the Board is asked to approve that
budget, that there is someone out there who might be
going to give you some money? Isthat reasonable?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And isthisthefirst time the Board
has been informed of that or isit just news to me?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't know whether that's in one of the
RFl'sor not. | can't recall.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Now what about Newfoundland
Power, we've got the Department of Transportation on side,
they want to use it, but what about Newfoundland Power?

MR. BUDGELL: Wédll, just stepping back for asecond, with
Aliant, Aliant was trying to sign everybody up for a
system, and it couldn't get enough users and that particular
proposal sort of fell apart. They couldnt proceed, so
Hydro had discussions with CRTC in regards to how we
could proceed with Newfoundland Power as being part of
our system and Works Services, and got an indication that
we could proceed and not be a common carrier ... Works
Services and Transportation were part of the proposal, but
we would have to have Newfoundland Power as a capital
... would have to share in the capital if they were to have a
part of the system, and | understand that our people met
with Newfoundland Power in February of this year, had a
consultant present to Newfoundland Power the additional
cost associated with including their coverage area in our
proposal for the VHF system, and Newfoundland Power
indicated at that time again, in the communications that |
had with the people in the telecontrol department, that they
would consider it, the costs looked expensive to their view,
but they would get back to us on that.
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MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And?
MR. BUDGELL: Well, we haven't heard what they ...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.. So youre telling us that
Newfoundland Power isn't cooperating at this point, is that
what you're telling us?

MR. BUDGELL: Well, Newfoundland Power haven't given
us any indication that they want to proceed. 1'm assuming
from their opposition, or the appearance of opposition to
the proposal in this hearing that they're not interested in
proceeding with usin this proposal.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Was there a consultant's report you
just mentioned?

MR. BUDGELL: The consultant did the costs. We have
different service territories, so the cost that you seeis only
to service our areas, so in order to cover off Newfoundland
Power's areas, we would have to have additional repeaters
and what have you.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Can you file that through your
counsel, get an undertaking to file that consultant
information with the Board?

MR. BUDGELL: | would assume so, yes, it shouldn't be a
problem.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Your own VHF system, it indicatesin
B-66, the revised October 31, 2001, capital budget, and
under the nature of the project, it says that site controllers
and radio repeaters are located at each of 29 sites across
the island and approximately 350 mobile and portable
radios. Now these radio repeater sites, are these yours, or
are they part of the network?

MR. BUDGELL: Part of which network?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Arethey apart of the network, the
VHF network which you're buying into

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, these are part of our, thisis part of
our network. | don't know if al these repeaters are located
on our structures though. Some of them may be, | would
suspect, located on Aliant structures.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So you've got 29 sites across the
island.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.. Now how many sites does
Newfoundland Power have across the island? Do you
know that?

MR. BUDGELL: | had anumber, if you'll bear with me, |
might be ableto find it.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Sure.
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MR. BUDGELL: Nineteen.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: They have 19, and where are their
sitesin proximity to your sites?

MR. BUDGELL: | wouldn't know the location of their sites,
but | would assume their sites are located to their areas of
business, and the majority of which, | would expect to be
on the Avalon Peninsula.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: You think their sites are al on the
Avalon Peninsula?

MR. BUDGELL: No, | would say agood many of them are
on the Avalon and in the major load centres where they do
service.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And would you have sites on the
Avalon Peninsula?

MR. BUDGELL: There'samap in the communications plan
in '97 that was filed that |ocates our sites.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Can you repeat that answer please?

MR. BUDGELL: There'samap of the locations of our sites
in the communications plan that was filed with the Board
and | believe it got filed again in one of the demand for
particulars at this hearing. If | could refer to that?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Sure, please.

MR. BUDGELL: It was filed as part of ... not on this
particular item, but NP-180, which was associated with the
microwave proposal.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Doyou havethatin ... Terry, doyou
have that?

MR. ORIELLY: The mapisnot available.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Pardon?
MR. ORIELLY: Themap isnot available.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Okay, sowe're going to need a hard
copy of that, NP-180.

MR. BUDGELL: It'sfigure A-2.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Isit the same as Mr. Henderson's
Schedule 4 in his evidence?

MR. BUDGELL: You may beright, yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Isthat the same asthat? That's what
| have.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, it could be the same schedule. His
would bein colour.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Yes.

MR. BUDGELL: But the good thing, | think, to draw from
the ... you'll get the sites and locations there. The one I'm
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looking at ... no, that's the microwave.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Yes, okay. That'sfrom Henderson's
Schedule 4?

MR. BUDGELL: No, thisisnot the...
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: On the screen.

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah, thisis not theright one. Isthere
another ... no, | think he just has the microwave system, not
the VHF.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Sothe microwaveisin A-4,isit?
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: FigureA-4, onthe Avalon Peninsula,
there you see it. Have you done an overlapping document
which shows Newfoundland Power, where they're located
and Hydro, where you're located?

MR. BUDGELL: | believe there is, in Dave Reeves
presentation, there's a general breakdown of the island, but
| mean it's not perfectly exact but it gives an indication.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Isthat in the Schedule 4 again?

MR. BUDGELL:
would be.

| don't know what the schedule number

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: | think it wasthe previous one, Terry.
MR. BUDGELL: Therewe go. Go back.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Okay, does this show the sites?

MR. BUDGELL: No, no, just the service territory you were
interested in.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: That'sthe service area?
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Do you have at Hydro specific, a
specific plan of Newfoundland Power's VHF sites? Do you
have that here?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't have that here, no.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: But doesHydro have it up there?

MR. BUDGELL: They could, | don't know. Newfoundland
Power, I'm sure, hasit, but ...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: | would think that they would have
it, but would Hydro have it aswell?

MR. BUDGELL: | don't know the answer to that question.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Can you find that out overnight,
undertake to find that out and if you have it as part of your,
in your documents, can you file that in the morning please?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.
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MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And can we have filed specifics of
your sites, if you don't have them there aready?

MR. BUDGELL: Our sitesare on Figure A-2.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Figure A-2, okay.

MR. BUDGELL: Figure A-2 of the'97 study. Thecircles,
you can see here that the circles are leased sites, but those
would be where our repeaters are located on Aliant's sites,
and the square blocks are the Hydro owned sites.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Now which of these would not be
serviced by Newfoundland Power?

MR. BUDGELL: Newfoundland Power hastheir own sites.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Yeah, | realizethat, but | seethat you
have some sites in Newfoundland Power's distribution area
aswell.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, because of our 230 kV network, where
our network goes, that's where we have to have coverage,
it's where our crews are working.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: But you can share a VHF mobile
radio system with the Department of Transportation, but
you can't share one, yourself and Newfoundland Power
can't get together to share one?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, wecan share one, but you haveto ...
Newfoundland Power has their own right now.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: | realize that.

MR. BUDGELL: And they've had their own for a long
period of time, so we would be interested in having
Newfoundland Power come on board with us on our new
one.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So you're committed to that?
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: You see some cost savings in that,
if Newfoundland Power came in with you in reference to
that?

MR.BUDGELL: Of course, if Newfoundland Power at some
future stage was going to invest in a new network, now if
the VHF ... our two systems are not compatible, we can't
talk to each other.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: It's my understanding from the
minutes that we met (sic), that when you were replacing
yours, that was the time that things could happen.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, and | think you will see some
reference to their desire to have discussions on the VHF
system in the correspondence which was filed as part of
this NP-180, in the letters from Mr. Bragg to Mr. Downton.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: But you're not yet at the stage, at
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least you haven't heard back from Newfoundland Power,
where they're going to say, they're going to share with you
on this expensive item?

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah, they haven't indicated to us, and we
are assuming from that that they are not interested.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.. And they asked you a lot of
guestions about yours, about eight pages of transcript
there, and yet you haven't heard back from them?

MR. BUDGELL: That'stheindication that | have from the
people in the telecontrol department that werein ...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Can you check that out overnight
and see whereit is, and maybe let us know in the morning?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Where we are with that. | notice on
your proposal, and we'll have to come back to some of this
in the morning and see what you're going to file overnight
because of the expense of this particular item. | notice that
there's no cost benefit study done in reference to the
proposal to spend $8,600,000 worth of money, aformal cost
benefit study was not required, and | think you made
reference to what a cost benefit study does in your
evidence yesterday when you were speaking to our
colleague, Janet Henley Andrews. What does a cost
benefit study do?

MR. BUDGELL: WEéll, it depends on the set up or the
interpretation that one puts on it, but the analysis that has
been completed in regard to this particular project, they
indicated that aformal cost benefit study was not required,
it was an indication that this is a system that met the
guidelines of the earlier part of the capital budget proposal
and didn't require one, but Hydro is going to have to
replace this particular item, so the cost study would only
centre, from our perspective, around which of the
aternatives is the cheapest and from that perspective, if
one assumes that that's a cost benefit study, there was a
review of the actual costs, but the cost benefit study could
only be done if there is an alternative of not to go ahead
and an alternative to go ahead, and what we're saying in
this particular case, in our view, there is no aternative not
to go ahead. We'd have to stand to the risk of losing our
total VHF system.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: But yet according to the minutes you
said in January 26th, 1999, two years and some months ago,
that you weren't planning to replace this until 2003/2004.

MR. BUDGELL: Before that. We weren't planning to
replace it before that time period, agreed.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Can you see where an item like this
might be of obvious concern to consumers, where
Newfoundland Power is out there spending money on it,
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and you're spending money on it, and we see minutes
where a Vice-President of Newfoundland Power makes
reference to philosophical differences between the two of
you in reference to it, and yet we see a budgetary item of
$8,600,000 before us. Can you see where that might be a
source of concern, would you grant me that?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, but | think again, | go back to the, |
think the comments of the Newfoundland Power individual,
it's his own personal assumptions on what he reads into
the VHF ... not the VHF ... | think it was in regards to
Hydro's plan in regards to its system, it's telecontrol
system, that it was going to have to update.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Inany case, you've given usalot of
information in reference to it, including the involvement of
the Department of Works Services and Transportation, and
Newfoundland Power, you're still waiting for areply from
Newfoundland Power, so maybe well see what overnight
brings, and we'll come back to this item tomorrow, and in
the meantime I'll go on and ask you some further questions.
Can you go to CA-147 please? I'm sorry, | think that's the
wrong number there. CA-48, can you go to CA-48?

MR. BUDGELL: Canl ak what itisinrelationto? | keep
these in different areas.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: WEell, according to my notes, | just
told myself to go to CA-48, so I'll have to wait and see
myself. (laughter) Yes, this was a question that was
provided by our expert, Mr. Bowman, and it poses the
guestion, the alternatives may be brought forward under a
general request for generation proposals (inaudible) to
procure new generation, and it asks you to make specific
references. Can you go through your response there?

MR. BUDGELL: Readitall, starting from the bottom of that
page?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Yes, | might, you can expand upon
your response, | guess.

MR. BUDGELL: Do youwant meto read it?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Yes, you can start there, just put it
into the record.

MR. BUDGELL: Thisisfor items(a) and (b), the following
is a description of Hydro's least cost resource planning
process as it applies to the island interconnected system,
under general methodology consideration. The planning
process is an orderly development and comparison of all
relevant system costs for al technically acceptable
alternatives to determine which is least cost. These
principles are applied to both transmission and generation
planning. Least cost resource and transmission planning
utilize current engineering and economic concepts and
procedures, advanced computer software, and the expertise
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and experience of utility system planners and consultants.
Inputs to these planning processes include comprehensive
data, definition for the existing systems load, and
generating capability, planning criteria and future resource
options.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Okay, | think it refers to, it makes
reference to the fact that you're entering into agreements
there with Fortis Energy, Abitibi Consolidated, and Corner
Brook Pulp and Paper, is that the area we're into here for
new generation?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.
(3:45p.m)

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Areyou out actively working on that
particular, those particular sites now, can you tell me that?

MR. BUDGELL: Which particular ones are you referring
to?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Say in Bishops Falls, and ...

MR. BUDGELL: No, we have no involvement with the
construction of that site.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And the other site, do you have any
involvement with that?

MR. BUDGELL: What other siteisthat?
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: In Corner Brook and Deer Lake?
MR. BUDGELL: No, no involvement.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So you have no involvement in
either?

MR. BUDGELL: We were only involved in the Granite
Canal site.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: In Granite Canal. In reference to
those other two sites from which you are purchasing
energy, | guess, that's the limit of your involvement, you're
purchasing energy?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And you're not sending engineers
out there to take alook or ...

MR. BUDGELL: No.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Nothing of that sort.

MR. BUDGELL: Our only involvement would be to review
the, any information they provide to us.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Okay, so you do have some
involvement, you're reviewing information they provide to
you?

MR. BUDGELL: Weéll, before the systems get connected
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onto the island grid, our engineers would have to have a
look at the design of the devel opment to ensure that we see
no problem with those devel opments.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And these two developments are
outside the sphere of the regulator.

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Now when these people go out and
take a look at all of that, are they going to be using
regulated funds, is that how you're paying them to do that?

MR. BUDGELL: They won't be going out, | don't think.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: They're dealing with non-regulated
entities and they're doing checks and so on, have you
informed your people to use time cards or something so the
ratepayers aren't getting charged for it?

MR. BUDGELL: I'm not aware that that direction has been
provided.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Do any peoplein your department do
any work ...

MR. BUDGELL: There will be very limited activity. It
would essentially be critical drawings, i.e., protection
control type drawings associated with the interconnection
to the system.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: It'smore system oriented.
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C..
themselves.

Than dealing with the entities

MR. BUDGELL: Yes,it'sanorma type of businessthat we
would have ongoing with any entity that's putting
equipment on the system. It wouldn't be anything that
would take more than a day or two for the appropriate
person to review. It'sincidental.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: But if these people are out there
reviewing and if they're assisting in any way, and it's out of
the sphere of the regulation of this Board, and outside the
sphere of regulated funds, do you have a system in place,
or have you put any kind of system in place to ensure
integrity there where the ratepayers are not paying for any
of these services?

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah, our people would not be providing
services for the construction of these sites, or construction
management.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Yeah, | think you told me that, but
then you said some of them might be going out to take a
look.

MR. BUDGELL: No, they'd only be looking at drawings
that we requested be provided to us.
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MR. BROWNE, Q.C.. And have you set up a standard
within your department to ensure that the ratepayers
interests are protected in reference to these projects?

MR. BUDGELL: I'm not aware that thereis anything set up
asyet. | don't expect that there would be any involvement
from our people until 2003 on these sites. It would be an
activity that would only be undergone during the
commissioning stages of these projects.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Butif they areinvolved, if they will
be getting involved, are you putting any system in place to
safeguard the ratepayers interest there? Say tracking of
hours, for instance?

MR. BUDGELL: I'm not aware that there'sone being put in
place. There is no activities in 2002 that | know of
associated with these projects.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Now, do you have any dealings with
CF(L)Co. yourself?

MR. BUDGELL: Not alot.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Do you have some?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, our department might do some
analysis for CF(L)Co..

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: What type of analysis do they do for
CF(L)Co.?

MR. BUDGELL: Wdll if CF(L)Co. hasaproblem associated
with any of their systems, they may ask usfor assistancein
evaluation.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Do you charge them for that effort?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, thereis, our costs are split out to all
Hydro's, al of our corporate entities.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Isthereastandard that isin place or
isit just, like so much an hour for doing the work as an
engineering hour used?

MR. BUDGELL: For our system planning department,
because it's not a, because it wouldn't be on the basis of a
particular project or a work order, there is a percentage of
our annual costs each and every year alocated to
CF(L)Co., as support, and I'm talking about the system
planning department.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: What kind of percentage?
MR. BUDGELL: | don't recal ...

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Canyou daborate onthat alittle? Is
it just aball parking?

MR. BUDGELL: It'sanumber that was developed many
years ago from what | understand based on prior activities.
It's a percentage of our costs.
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MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Hasit been updated in reference to
wages, I'm sure ... you said it was developed quite a number
of years ago.

MR. BUDGELL: It's apercentage.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: It'sapercentage.

MR. BUDGELL: It'sapercentage so it doesn't need to be
updated on that basis.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: So that's the method that you're
using to ensure ratepayers funds aren't subsidizing?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes.
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: You do it on a percentage basis?
MR. BUDGELL: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Do you have any idea asto how the
percentage was devel oped?

MR. BUDGELL: | understand it was developed a number
of years ago based on some activities.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Isthere apaper out therein ...
MR. BUDGELL: Or somereview.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Isthere paper out there in reference
to that?

MR. BUDGELL: I'mnot aware of any. It'sbeenin place as
long as | remember.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: But somewhere it must be written
what the percentage is or what the agreement is.

MR. BUDGELL: I'm sorry, what the percentageis....
MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: There must be writing somewhere.

MR. BUDGELL: Yeah, I'm surewecan find out through the
system what the percentage is of system planning's
activities that are charged annually to CF(L)Co..

MR. BROWNE, Q.C..: Can you have your counsel
undertake to provide to us any written paper that's out
there in reference to the general procedure that's followed?

MS. GREENE, Q.C.: That'sfiledin NP-11(b), the procedure
for charging CF(L)Co.. If you're asking a more specific
question, | wonder if you could identify it. That's already
on the record.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: That's already filed, NP-11?
MS. GREENE, Q.C.: Yes.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Okay.

MS. GREENE, Q.C.: Yesh, 11(b).

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: | went from Grand Fallsto CF(L)Co.
just as a test, but if it's already there I'll take a look at it
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overnight myself and I'll ask you some questions about it
in the morning.

MS. GREENE, Q.C.: That's the procedure for charging
CF(L)Co., which was one of the subject matters of
discussion with Newfoundland Power's witness, Mr.
Browne.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Canyou go to CA-52 please, and the
question put there, Hydro is forecasting strong growth in
demand for the next two years, yet demand growth has
been relatively flat since Hydro's last filing, and what are
the drivers behind this. Isthis, your answer to this, is this
still current? Can you read your answer into the record?

MR. BUDGELL: The significant drivers behind Hydro's
interconnected island higher demand forecast in 2001 and
2002 include increased sales to Newfoundland Power
atributed to areturn to normal weather assumption relative
to recent years of below norma heating degree days,
coupled with modest growth expectations. As well,
increased salesto Corner Brook Pulp and Paper Limited are
associated with an increase in power (inaudible) as
anticipated by the customer, see NP-158.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Isthat still current? Do you still
predict increased sales to Corner Brook Pulp and Paper?

MR. BUDGELL: | think still an increase but it's not as
dramatic, and that'sfiled as part of my second supplemental
evidence. | believe the demand was 67 and the new power

. the power in order, there is a paragraph in the
supplemental indicating that they had advised us in this
year's power in order, subsequent to us doing the
supplemental evidence and the new forecast, that they
wished the power in order to be 56 rather than the 67 that
was in the forecast, so 56 is still an increase but it's not as
high. It's five megawatts higher, not the 15 or so
megawatts higher.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.. Sothisforecastingisstill on track?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, andthe, the other changein regard to
this is in relation to the, this is in relation to the as-filed
Newfoundland Power forecast, and | think the new forecast
for Newfoundland Power is a little higher on an energy
basis, sales basis.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Newfoundland Power islooking for
more from you?

MR. BUDGELL.: 1 think this was discussed the other day
too. It'sin the supplemental evidence.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.. Yes. Newfoundland Power's
requirements from you, is that driven by demands for
electric heat?

MR. BUDGELL: Yes, part of it.

49

50
51
52

53
54

55
56

61

62
63
64

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Isthat the mgjor part?

MR. BUDGELL: | think it'sthe, there'sindications, | think,
in past hearings that they derive perhaps half their revenue
from that resource.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: And maybethat's ... it's 4:00, do you
want to break there, Mr. Chairman?

MR.NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Isit aconvenient time
for you or would you prefer to go on for another little
while?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: I've got about another hour, | would
say, but | want to see some of this stuff that's filed
overnight.

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Okay.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Now we talked yesterday about
going until 4:30. | don't know if that's ... I'm prepared to go
till 4:30, but has that been raised with the Board yet?

MR. KENNEDY: No, it hasn't been raised with the panel
yet.

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: Okay, very good, well I'll leave that
one alone. Thank you very much.

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr.
Browne, thank you, Mr. Budgell. We'l reconvene at 9:30
tomorrow morning.

MS. BUTLER, Q.C.: Mr. Chairman, | wonder if | might just
get some sense of tomorrow's agenda for perhaps the
benefit of Mr. Roberts and | who might be on if things are
going to complete with Mr. Budgell. What | had said
yesterday in the meeting of counsel was that if, in fact, we
got till lunchtime and Mr. Budgell was not, or was just
complete, | don't know if there'd be any merit in my starting
Mr. Roberts. If on the other hand, Mr. Budgell completes
early in the morning, then perhaps | might take advantage
of, you know, three quarters of the day, so perhaps
between Mr. Browne and Mr. Kennedy now, we might have
some sense of that. Otherwise, | might be working tonight
with a staff member that may not be necessary.

MS. GREENE, Q.C.: And our concern iswith respect to the
schedule. We would not like to lose another half day if &
al, if it can be avoided, so yes, it would be very helpful if
Mr. Browne and Mr. Kennedy, and the panel too, | guess,
could indicate how long they plan to be tomorrow so we
can plan when Mr. Roberts will need to be ready to start at
some stage tomorrow.

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Mr. Browne, would
you have any notion at al?

MR. BROWNE, Q.C.: The witness has undertaken to give
some information in reference to the radio system, and the
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areasthat | want to deal with them tomorrow, in fairnessto
him, if he wants to look them over ... demand side
management, I'll be dealing with that tomorrow, and one or
two other areas, so | can't see being any longer than the
break, but | don't know what we might stumble upon, so it
could be, we may go longer than the break, the morning
break.

MR. KENNEDY: And Chair, redlisticaly, between the
Consumer Advocate, myself, the panel, redirect, questions
arising, it would be highly unlikely that well even be
wasting an afternoon, but rather be fortunate to finish with
Mr. Budgell by the end of tomorrow.

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: |'m taking from that,
Counsdl, that you're, you will be alittle while as well.

MR. KENNEDY: That's correct.
MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: | suspect.

MS. GREENE, Q.C.: Well, Mr. Robertswill beready if that
occasion should arise?

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Wéll, | think if we
were to get beyond into the afternoon, certainly if we were
to get a full half a day it might be appropriate. It doesn't
look that way at this point in time, so | think there's a
distinct possibility from what I'm hearing in any event that
we'll have a very small window of opportunity tomorrow
afternoon if we were to bring Mr. Roberts forward, so |
think we'll assume for planning purposes, and Ms. Butler's
evening, that we will not be, we will not be seeing Mr.
Raberts come on the stand tomorrow.

MS. BUTLER, Q.C.: That'sfine, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
| think it is of benefit to the witness honestly as well, you
know, to know whether he's going to be on the stand
tomorrow.

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Yes, understood, yes
... Okay?

MR. HUTCHINGS: Mr. Chairman, if | might, if we do have
alittle extra time tomorrow afternoon, | am foreseeing the
possibility we may need to have Mr. Henderson back to
address the document that was filed earlier on about the
hydrology. We're having some difficulty in reconciling all
the numbers we have, and | don't think it will take very
long, but if we do happen to have an hour tomorrow
afternoon, that might be a convenient time.

MR. NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: Do you have any
comment, Ms. Greene, on that?

MS. GREENE, Q.C.: Will we have Mr. Henderson on and
off in a short time that it would appear that we would have
available, otherwise he's going to be split too with the cost
of capital, so | guess the only thing | can say is that well
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have to reassess as to where we are. | would not like to put
Mr. Henderson on, any more than Ms. Butler would like to
have Mr. Roberts on, if he can't be complete, and we are
having a break next week because we go back to cost of
capital, and this is the first I've heard that there was a
request for any additional evidence from Mr. Henderson.

MS. HENLEY ANDREWS: We only got the document
yesterday.

MS. GREENE, Q.C.: Yes, | understand, but thisisthefirst
time I've heard, and I'm not even sure what is the schedule
for tomorrow for Mr. Henderson.

MR.NOSEWORTHY, CHAIRMAN: | think redlistically the
only thing we can do is wait to see what transpires
tomorrow and see if we have the time to begin and
complete that in arealistic fashion. Okay, thank you very
much. Well seeyou at 9:30 in the morning.

(hearing adjourned to November 9, 2001)
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